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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
ERBEXRZMAERAA(BRIA]) GEMBEE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main
Board. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the

decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange’) take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”) of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company’,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
hereby present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2024.

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong Fai
Jewellery (BI#E¥KE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the New

Territories.

The Group’s principal products are jewellery products including
gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products, which are produced
in-house at its production facility in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The Group also engages in the wholesale of
its jewellery products to other jewellery retailers, and sale of gold

products which are recycled from the general public.

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a wider
range of market opportunities when the economic environment and
retail industry in Hong Kong further improve. We are extending our
marketing campaign to social media in the hope that it will bring a
desirable return to the shareholders of the Company and sustain a

long-term growth of the Group.

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 24 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBFNWR DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through
its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (BIfEZKE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group is capable
of controlling the diversity, quality and pricing of its own jewellery
designs produced in-house at its production facility in Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Group’s principal products are jewellery products, including
gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products. The Group also
engages in the wholesale of its jewellery products to other jewellery
retailers, and the sale of gold products which are recycled from the

general public.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately HK$5.5 million,
or approximately 4.0%, from approximately HK$136.8 million for
the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$142.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2024. The increase in revenue was
mainly driven by increase in revenue from trading of recycled gold
products by approximately HK$12.7 million, and such increase
was partially offset by the decrease in revenue from (i) diamond,
karat gold, jade, pearl, platinum jewellery products (the “gem-
set jewellery products”) for the amount of approximately HK$5.1
million; and (ii) pure gold products for the amount of approximately
HK$2.1 million.

Revenue by Products
(a) Gem-set jewellery products

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s revenue
generated from the sales of gem-set jewellery products
decreased by approximately HK$5.1 million, or approximately
8.5%, from approximately HK$60.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2023 to approximately HK$55.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2024. The decrease was mainly due to
the fact that local citizens tend to travel or spend money in
mainland China, and their willingness to spend in Hong Kong
has declined, which has led to a decline in the foot traffic in

our retail stores.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEBNWmE DM

(b)

(c)

Gold jewellery products

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s
revenue generated from the sales of gold jewellery
products decreased by approximately HK$2.1 million, or
approximately 3.9%, from approximately HK$54.5 million for
the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$52.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2024. The decrease
was mainly due to the fact that local citizens tend to travel
or spend money in mainland China, and their willingness
to spend in Hong Kong has declined, which has led to a

decline in the foot traffic in our retail stores.
Trading of recycled gold products

The Group’s revenue from trading of recycled gold
products increased by approximately HK$12.7 million, or
approximately 58.5%, from approximately HK$21.7 million
for the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$34.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2024. The increase
was mainly attributable to the fact that the global pure gold
prices reached its peak in 2024 which attracts the customers

to sell their own gold products to us for recycling.

Revenue by Business (sales channels)

(a)

Retail operation

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s revenue
generated from retail operation decreased by approximately
HK$8.1 million, or approximately 7.8%, from approximately
HK$103.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$95.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2024. The decrease was mainly due to the fact that local
citizens tend to travel or spend money in mainland China,
and their willingness to spend in Hong Kong has declined,
which has led to a decline in the foot traffic in our retail

stores.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWRDN

(b)

(c)

Wholesales

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s revenue from
wholesale channel was approximately HK$12.2 million which
increased by approximately HK$0.9 million, or approximately
7.7%, as compared to approximately HK$11.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

Trading of recycled gold products

The Group’s revenue from trading of recycled gold products
increased by approximately HK$12.7 million, or approximately
58.5%, from approximately HK$21.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2023 to approximately HK$34.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2024. The increase was mainly attributable
to the fact that the global pure gold prices reached its peak
in 2024 which attracts the customers to sell their own gold

products to us for recycling.

Cost of goods sold

Although the Group’s revenue increased, the Group’s cost of goods

sold decreased by approximately HK$1.6 million, or approximately

1.6%, from approximately HK$104.7 million for the year ended 31

March 2023 to approximately HK$103.1 million for the year ended

31 March 2024. The decrease was mainly due to the continued rise

in gold prices during the year ended 31 March 2024, it enabled

the Group to sell the recycled gold products and gold jewellery

products at higher prices, and thus the gross profit margins of these

products increased compared with the prior year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBENWE D

Overall Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately HK$7.1 million,
or approximately 22.1%, from approximately HK$32.1 million for
the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$39.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2024. The Group’s gross profit margin
increased from approximately 23.5% for the year ended 31 March
2023 to approximately 27.5% for the year ended 31 March 2024.
There are no significant changes of gross profit margin policy for the
gem-set jewellery products during the year ended 31 March 2024.
However, due to the continued rise in gold prices during the year
ended 31 March 2024, it enabled the Group to sell the recycled
gold products and gold jewellery products at higher prices, and
thus the gross profit margins of these products increased compared
with the prior year, resulting in the overall increase in the gross

profit and gross profit margin.
Other income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounted to
approximately HK$0.7 million (2023: approximately HK$2.3 million),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.6 million as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2023. The decrease in
other income was mainly due to the reason that the Anti-epidemic
Fund under the Employment Support Scheme of approximately
HK$1.2 million and Technology Voucher Programme Fund of
approximately HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2023
received were not available for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Other (losses)/gains, net

Other net loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounted to
approximately HK$0.5 million (2023: net gain of approximately
HK$0.1 million). The loss was mainly due to net loss on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) of approximately
HK$0.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 while net gain
on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$0.1 million was

recognised for the year ended 31 March 2023.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounted to
approximately HK$1.2 million (2023: approximately HK$1.2 million).

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs for the year ended 31 March 2024
amounted to approximately HK$20.4 million (2023 (Restated):
approximately HK$20.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.2 million or approximately 1.0% as compared
with the corresponding period in 2023. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in other staff's salaries and other benefits by
approximately HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2024.

General and administrative expenses

For both years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
(Restated), the general and administrative expenses remained

stable at approximately HK$15.8 million.
Taxation

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounted
to approximately HK$0.3 million (2023 (Restated): income tax
credit of approximately HK$0.7 million). The particulars of the
Group’s taxation are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial

statements.
Dividend

The board (the “Board”) of Directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
March 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBFNWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
TREASURY POLICY

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2024, total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK118.1 million (2023 (Restated): approximately
HK$128.3 million), which was financed by total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity (comprising share capital and reserves) of
approximately HK$47.2 million (2023 (Restated): approximately
HK$58.1 million) and approximately HK$70.9 million (2023
(Restated): approximately HK$70.2 million), respectively.

The total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31
March 2024 amounted to approximately HK$22.8 million (2023:
approximately HK$28.9 million), and current ratio as at 31 March
2024 was approximately 1.88 times (2023 (Restated): approximately
1.64 times) mainly due to the decrease in amount due to controlling
shareholder and decrease in bank borrowings.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing total
debts (total debts are defined to include payables incurred not in
the ordinary course of business) by total equity as at the end of
each of the financial year, decreased from approximately 41.1% as
at 31 March 2023 (Restated) to approximately 32.1% as at 31 March
2024. The said decrease was primarily due to the decrease in bank
borrowings and amount due to controlling shareholder.

The Group has no available unutilised bank loan facilities as at 31
March 2024 (2023: Nil).

The Directors are of the view that as at the date hereof, the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to support its business and
operations.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the reporting period. The management of the
Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of trade receivables
by performing ongoing credit assessments and monitoring prompt
recovery and if necessary, makes adequate impairment losses
for irrecoverable amounts. In order to achieve better cost control
and minimise the cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised and cash is generally deposited with leading licensed
banks in Hong Kong and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

Capital Structure

The Company’s shares (“Shares”) were successfully listed on GEM
on 27 March 2019. There has been no change in the Company’s
capital structure since 27 March 2019 to the date of this annual
report. The capital structure of the Group comprises issued share
capital and reserves. The Directors review the Group’s capital

structure regularly.

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$7,500,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
750,000,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any pledge of assets
(2023: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any other plans for material investment and capital assets as at 31
March 2024.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of US$
and RMB. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will be
immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary assets and liabilities

are held by group entities having HK$ as their functional currency.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did not have
any hedging arrangements. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. The
management of the Group considers the exposure to the foreign

exchange risk fluctuation for the Group is not material.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBFNWR DN

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (2023: approximately HK$0.2 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2024, the Group and the Company had no material
contingent liabilities (2023: Nil).

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2024, the Group employed 72 (2023: 75) staff
(including Executive Directors). We determine employees’
remuneration based on factors such as qualification, duty,
contributions and years of experience. As at 31 March 2024,
the Group had no significant obligation apart from the defined
contributions schemes and there is no forfeited contribution arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme and which
were available to reduce contributions payable. In addition, the
Group provides comprehensive training programs to its employees
or sponsors the employees to attend various job-related training

courses.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purposes of, among others, providing
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Further details in relation to
the share option scheme and share award scheme are set out in
paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award
Scheme” under the “Report of Directors” in this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Other than disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and capital assets during the year ended 31 March
2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks and uncertainties involved in the Group’s
current operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control.
The most significant risks relating to the business such as (i)
price fluctuation of jewellery raw materials of the Group’s jewellery
products could materially and adversely affect its business; (ii) the
Group may not be able to renew the leases of its retail stores which
may affect its business and operation when the relevant leases
expire or terminate; (iii) the Group may not be able to sustain its
profitability; (iv) the Group has high gearing ratio that may expose
it to liquidity risk; and (v) challenges or continued downturn in
economic conditions may affect the demand for the products which

could adversely affect the Group’s sales or growth.

OUTLOOK

During the year ended 31 March 2024, although there was
resumption of normal customs clearance between the Mainland
China and Hong Kong, the retail industry had not fully recovered,
and the macro-economy remained unclear. Despite the changing
market environment, the Group relied on its in-depth understanding
of the market and consumer trends and made good use of operating
resources, which allowed the Group to turn losses into profits during

the year.

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a wider
range of market opportunities when the economic environment and
retail industry in Hong Kong becomes better. We are extending our
marketing campaign to social media in the hope that it will bring a
desirable return to the shareholders and sustain a long-term growth
of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGAREEENBERSE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fu Chun Keung (“Mr. Fu”)

Mr. Fu, aged 56, was appointed as the chairman, the chief executive
officer and an executive Director of the Company in January 2018.
Mr. Fu is the major founder of the Group which was established in
1997, and now responsible for supervising overall management and
strategy planning of the Group as well as its daily operation and

management.

Mr. Fu is the spouse of Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk, an executive Director,

and the younger brother of Ms. Fu Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk (“Ms. Cheung”)

Ms. Cheung, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director in
March 2018. Ms. Cheung is the head of the Group’s procurement
department, and is responsible for formulating corporate and

business strategies.

Ms. Cheung has over 20 years’ experience in the jewellery industry
and joined the Group since 1999. Ms. Cheung was awarded by the
GIA a certificate for completing the requirements of the program
in Diamond Essentials in November 2014, and a certificate for
completing the requirements of the program in Diamonds and
Diamond Grading as well as a diploma certificate for completing
the diploma program in Graduate Diamonds respectively in January
2015.

Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and a sister-in-law of Ms. Fu

Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Fu Wan Ling (“Ms. Fu”)

Ms. Fu, aged 63, was appointed as an executive Director in March
2018.

Ms. Fu is responsible for formulating the overall strategy,
supervising the administration and overseeing the inventory of the

Group.

Ms. Fu has over 20 years of experience in the jewellery industry and

joined the Group since August 1997.

Ms. Fu is the elder sister of Mr. Fu and the sister-in-law of Ms.
Cheung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEENEBEFR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (“Mr. Chan”)

Mr. Chan, aged 74, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Chan is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Chan has over 32 years of working experience in the Inland
Revenue Department. He was an assistant commissioner

responsible for tax compliance before he retired in 2005.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of a tax consultancy company,
C T Tax Consultants Limited since 2006. Further, Mr. Chan is
an independent non-executive director of Medicskin Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8307) since 2014; and an independent non-
executive director of Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8512) since 2018, an independent non-executive director of Accel
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1283), since February 2020,
an independent non-executive director of Ye Xing Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1941) since February 2020, an independent
non-executive director of Wasion Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3393) since June 2020, and a non-executive director of
Alpha Financial Group Limited since September 2019. He was also
an independent non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited (stock code: 938) from 2015 to 2016 and Guangdong
Tannery Limited (stock code: 1058) from 2006 to 2020.

Mr. Chan graduated from Central Queensland University of Australia
with a master degree in financial management in 1995. He has been
an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) (U.K.)
since 1974 and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
since 1994. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (formerly known as the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants) since 1986; a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1983; and
a fellow member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising

Accountants since 1990.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGAREEENBERSE

Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Tony (“Mr. Tony Chan”)

Mr. Tony Chan, aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director
since September 2018. Mr. Tony Chan is responsible for supervising

and providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Tony Chan possesses over 20 years of experience in the field of

business advisory, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Tony Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in Commerce (major in
Accounting) from the Australian National University in 1990. He is a
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 2012 and a member of the CPA Australia (formerly known as

Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants) since 1993.

Mr. Tony Chan was an independent non-executive director of
Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) from 2015
to 2021. Mr. Tony Chan was as a non-executive director of Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143) from 2016
to 2018 and re-designated as an executive director in 2018 and
resigned from the position in 2019. Mr. Tony Chan also served as an
executive director of Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1718) from 2016 to 2018.

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick (“Mr. Wong”)

Mr. Wong, aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Wong is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Wong is currently practising as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong obtained his Bachelor of Laws from The University of
London in 1987. Mr. Wong was called to the degree of utter barrister
of the Honourable Society of Gray’s Inn in 1989 and obtained Master
of Laws in international economic law in The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2009 and Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Directorship jointly issued by Hong Kong Baptist
University and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2011.
Mr. Wong obtained a degree in Master of Science in Corporate
Governance and Directorship (Distinction) issued by Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2011. Mr. Wong is also a Chartered Engineer,
a member of Institute of Energy, Institution of Mechanical Engineers

and Institution of Engineering and Technology.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEENBERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Yung Kam Keung (“Mr. Yung”)
Head of Wholesales and Retail Department

Mr. Yung, aged 56, is the head of the Group’s wholesales and retail
department. Mr. Yung is responsible for overseeing the wholesaling
and retailing functions of the Group. Mr. Yung joined the Group in
2012.

Mr. Yung possesses over 20 years of experience in the jewellery

industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRE

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of the business and its shareholders, and consistent
with the code provisions as set out in part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Group has considered the CG Code and has put in place corporate
governance practices to meet the code provisions. Since the listing
of the shares of the Company on GEM, the Company has adopted
and complied with, where applicable, part 2 of the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2024 up to the date of this Annual Report,
except for code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code. Please
refer to the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer” below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the role of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung, the major founder of the Group, is chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer. With extensive experience
in the jewellery industry, Mr. Fu is responsible for the overall
management, decision-making and strategy planning of the Group
and is instrumental to the Group’s growth and business expansion.
Since Mr. Fu is the key person for the Group’s development and
he will not undermine the Group’s interests in any way under
any circumstances, the Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in Mr. Fu, is in the best interest
of the Group and beneficial to the management of the Group. In
addition, the senior management and the Board, which comprise
experienced individuals, could effectively check and balance the
power and authority of Mr. Fu. Therefore, the Board considers that
deviation from code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code is

appropriate in such circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and internal control
of the Company. It oversees the Group’s businesses, lays down
strategies and monitors the Group’s operational and financial
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Board has general powers to manage and conduct the
Company’s business. The day-to-day operations and management
are delegated by the Board to the senior management of the
Company, who will implement the strategy and direction as laid
down by the Board.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board currently comprises six members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 16 to 18 of
this annual report.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and each of independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years since 27 March 2019 (the “Listing Date”) and is subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
term of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may
be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), the Listing Rules and other applicable

laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRE

At all times during the year ended 31 March 2024, the independent
non-executive Directors represent more than one-third of the
Board. Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than

three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times complied with Rule 5.05A of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board, of whom Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony is the Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and considers them to be

independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to ensure that the
Board procedures are followed. The company secretary of the

Company is Mr. Wong Ho Pang.
Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All Directors attended various trainings during the year ended 31
March 2024, including trainings regarding the updated GEM Listing
Rules, the responsibilities and continuous obligations of Directors
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide.
The Company had arranged suitable trainings for all Directors in
order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of

their continuous professional development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRSE

Training record of each Director received for the year ended 31

March 2024 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

EEnA

Mr. Fu Chun Keung HEER L
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REEZI
Ms. Fu Wan Ling HEWLZ T
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZELAE
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRFRA L A4
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick FIksREHE

The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and improving
its internal systems, including those in relation to internal supervision

and control, and risk management.
Indemnity of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance for its Directors and officers covering the legal

action against the Directors and officers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2)
and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate

qualifications or accounting or related financial expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive Director is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific independence
criteria as required by the GEM Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate

communications of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In
compliance with code provision C.5.3 in Part 2 of the CG Code, at
least 14 days’ notice has been given for a regular Board meeting
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Notice, agenda and
board papers of regular Board meetings are sent to all Directors
within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to the meetings.
Directors are free to contribute and share their views at meetings
and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board
meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are
prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comments before the final version of which are

endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee

meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meetings and general meetings of the Company held

during the year ended 31 March 2024 are summarized as follows:

Board
meeting

EZE88  ENZEE

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. Fu Chun Keung BER LA 414
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REINT 4/4
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLL 404

Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHTES

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REEEE 404
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick B ¢ Vit 4/4
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BFHEE 414
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All Board committees are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties. The terms of reference for each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have been
published on the websites of Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.chongfaiholdings.com). Each committee
deals with matters in accordance with its terms of reference so
that they could perform their functions properly, including but
not limited to reporting back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations. All committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and have access to independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense if so reasonably
required. The list of the chairman, members and duties of each of

the committees are as follows:
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent non-executive
Directors. The Board is satisfied that the current mix of experience
of the committee members facilitates an effective functioning of their

roles. The members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less

exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review, and
provide an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, oversee the audit process, scope of audit
and appointment of external auditors and perform other duties and

responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee shall hold at least two meetings a year. The Audit
Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31 March
2024 to review and approve the Group’s quarterly, interim and

annual reports before submission to the Board for approval.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, two of
whom are Independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Fu Chun Keung
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish
and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for the
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board on remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet not less than once every
year. The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2024 to review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and the senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors and one is executive
Director.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
Directors. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit
against objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of
diversity on the Board in accordance with the board diversity policy
adopted by the Company. Diversity of the Board will be considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a Director.
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The Company will also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2024 to review composition of the Board and
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and to adopt a nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

Nomination Policy

According to the Nomination Policy, in evaluating and selecting
any candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee would
consider the criteria, including, among other things, character
and integrity, qualifications (cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy), any potential
contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of
qualifications, skills, experience, independence and diversity, and
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt of
the proposal on appointment of new director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. The Nomination
Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint
the appropriate candidate for directorship with a ranking of the
candidates (if applicable) by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate.

Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
has considered Board diversity from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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We believe the Board has a well-balance of cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience where members of the Board have diversified branch of

learning and working experience in different countries and regions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision A.2 in Part 2 of the CG Code, the
Board is responsible for performing the duties relating to corporate
governance functions. The Board has the following responsibilities
in performing the corporate governance duties of the Company
as follows: (i) developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations;
(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management
of the Group; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and (v) reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclose in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings (the
“Required Standard of Dealings”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of them have confirmed that they
have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings during the
year ended 31 March 2024. No incident of non-compliance was

noted by the Company during such period.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the fees paid/payable to the
external auditors in respect of audit was approximately HK$520,000.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the reporting period. A statement from the auditors about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 98 to 105 of this annual report. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024, the Directors of the Company have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimated that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared

the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems. Such
internal control and risk management systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board with the supported of the Audit Committee as well as the
management, had conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems during the
year ended 31 March 2024 which covered financial, operational,
compliance procedural and risk management functions and had
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s

accounting and financial reporting function.

In light of the size and scale of the Group’s business, the Group
does not have an internal audit function as the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit function within the Group. The Board will continue to
review and consider to establish such department as and when it

thinks necessary.
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The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence
and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has
therefore made continued efforts to uplift its quality of corporate
governance. It has established an effective system of internal
controls and adopted a series of measures to ensure its safety and
effectiveness. As a result, the Group is able to safeguard its assets
and protect the interests of the shareholders. The Board is of the
view that the systems of internal control and risk management are
effective and there are no irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other
deficiencies that suggest material deficiency in the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control system.
Internal Control System

The Company has maintained an internal control system and its
implementation has been considered by the Audit Committee and
the Board as effective. Meanwhile, the Group strives for continual
improvement through efforts to enhance controls by providing
ongoing employee training and development, talent retention, and
other measures. The Group follows a disciplined and balanced
compensation framework with strong internal governance and
independent Board oversight. The impact of risk and control issues
are carefully considered in the Group’s performance evaluation and

incentive compensation processes.

The Group’s internal control system and procedures are designed to
meet its specific business needs and to minimise its risk exposure.
The Group has adopted different internal guidelines, along with
written policies and procedures to monitor and lessen the impact
of risks which are relevant to the Group’s business and control
the Group’s daily business operations. In order to ensure sound
implementation of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the Group has also adopted various on-going measures as

set out below:

—  the Group has performed an internal control review and has

adopted a revised operations and procedures manual;

—  the Group has improved its existing internal control framework
by adopting a set of internal control manual and policies,
which cover corporate governance, risk management,

operations and legal matters;
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—  the Group will assess and monitor the implementation of
its internal control manual and policies by the relevant
departments and companies in the Group through regular

audits and inspections; and

—  the Group will provide internal training to staff as appropriate
in order to enable them to follow the internal control

procedures.

With reference to the internal control manual and policies of the
Group, the risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Board with
the support of the Audit Committee and the management and will
be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the

Board. These systems were considered effective and adequate.

The Group will continuously monitor and improve the Group’s
management procedures to ensure that effective operation of those
internal controls are in line with the growth of the Group’s business

and good corporate governance practice.

Finance Director is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
internal control measures in relation to anti-money laundering and

cash management.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group has one main IT platform that supports its business
operations, namely POS system. The IT platform was developed
by an independent third party contractors to suit the Group’s
requirements and it is continually refined and upgraded to meet the

Group’s business needs.

The Group’s POS system records sales and inventory movements as
it is linked to every retail store. The Group’s management is able to
manage effectively the retail stores through the POS system which
provides them with the performance of each retail store and its
inventory status. With the ability of the Group’s POS system to track
the inventory movements in each retail store, the Directors are in a
better position to assess what type of products are more popular in
each retail store, which in turn enables the Group to respond more

swiftly to market demands.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company is set out as follows:

Payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
time. The declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board. The Board shall also take into
account the following factors when considering whether to propose

dividends and determining the dividend amount:
1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company

and each of the members of the Group;

. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure

requirements and future expansion plans;
4. the Group’s liquidity position;

5. contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the shareholders or by the Company’s

subsidiaries to the Company;
6. taxation considerations;

7. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Group; and

8. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to
the Articles, general meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting should be held within two

months after the deposit of such requisition.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each

general meeting.

Under Article 12.3 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may at all
times have the right, by a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If, within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of the
Company under the Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph to make a written
requisition to require the convening of an extraordinary general

meeting of the Company.
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Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are published on the

Company’s website.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may

send written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address: No. 6-13, Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road, Hung Hom,

Kowloon, Hong Kong
Attention: Company Secretary

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company (the
“Memorandum and Articles”) were amended to, among other
things, bring the Memorandum and Articles up to date and in line
with the revised requirements under the Listing Rules and applicable
laws of Cayman Islands, and incorporate certain housekeeping
amendments, with effect from 8 August 2023. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 13 July 2023
and 8 August 2023, and the circular of the Company dated 13 July
2023.

Save for the aforesaid, during the year ended 31 March 2024, there
have been no significant changes to the constitutional documents of

the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Ho Pang is the Company Secretary. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and he has
complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules by taking no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial
year ended 31 March 2024 to update his skills and knowledge.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged engaged in the retail of its own products
through its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of
“Chong Fai Jewellery (E}#IKE )" strategically located in Kowloon
and the New Territories. The Group also engages in the wholesale
of its jewellery products to other jewellery retailers, and the trading
of recycled gold products from the general public to customers who

purchase recycled gold products from the Group.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set

out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The financial results of the Group for 2023/24 are set out on pages

106 to 223 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and assets and liabilities of the Group
announced in the past 5 years are set out on page 224 of this

annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

The fair review of the Group’s business is detailed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 15 of this
annual report. The discussion constitutes a part of this Directors’
Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks faced by the Group are set out in page 15
of this annual report. As it is a non-exhaustive list, there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the disclosure. Besides, this
annual report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice
for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company. Investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult professionals before

making any investment in the securities of the Company.
Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators are detailed in the financial review
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to
15 of this annual report. This discussion constitutes a part of this

Report of Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of this annual report.

No final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2024, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2023: Nil).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

EBER
WE

BRAEEEBHEERFINAFRECES
BEMNERBIMEOITT - Xl wmEKAE

SHREN—#D -

FERBRRFAEERE

AEEFEENEIERRBNAFRFEISH -
R RERSMBREE @ FRAABEEIN - TRAl8E
FEHEMRR R THEERSE o I - REHRHES
BEMALHBEREBAREARNRRBFMELH
HAZAXEBR - REFEEREARRAESA
EETHERFBAERALTHER -

HEERER
AREDEEFHENAFRECEFI5AETR
Ealim RO P IEER o Zal wBKAES

B~ -

o

FARKRE

KREBEHE2024F3A31BIEFENEEH N
AERGEBERREMEAKZRA -

NRABREE2024%F3 A31 B ILFE R H KK
SRR AR IR S - B3RS ER AR IR E
A% B (2023 4 « #&) o



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 5% of the Group’s total revenue.
The five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 19% of
the Group’s total purchases. In addition, the largest customer
accounted for approximately 3% of the Group’s total revenue while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 12% of the Group’s
total purchases. None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
March 2024, there were no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2024 and the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2024 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 106 and 107 respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options of
the Company are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive right under the Articles
of Association of the Company and the Cayman lIslands law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 109 and in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company had distributable reserve of
approximately HK$16,354,000, calculated under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Such amount includes share premium which
may be distributable provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company and its
subsidiaries made charitable donations of approximately HK$5,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2024

and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of

Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles, at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Wong
Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. None of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in

writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

There was no transactions, arrangement or contract of significance
connected to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, or its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director and the Director’s connected
party had a direct or indirect material interest, subsisting at the end
of the year ended 31 March 2024 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has in force
indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes for
the benefits of the Directors. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Company’s Articles of Association in respect of
potential losses and liability associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors and the payment of any sum

primarily due from the Company that may be liable by the Directors.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the

benefit of the Directors is currently in force.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or exited during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix C1
of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all the Directors’
remuneration. The Directors’ remuneration is determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules from each of the
Independent non-executive Directors and considers that all the
Independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat,
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2024, interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of the Director Capacity

EEnE 54

Mr. Fu® Interest in controlled corporation
BoEAE? FHEEER

(also a chief executive)

(b B ITHUAEEL)

Ms. Fu? Interest in controlled corporation
B2 AR

Ms. Cheung®®
Rz t?®

Interest in controlled corporation,
interest of spouse
R LE R - RBEE

BYFATESNE LS HER

ARFEEERBUIFATESTREGEM L
R B 55 5.00 ikt BB & 7 3 H 0 5 E R
E UYRRERBBYUFATEZ(AREES
B BREERRFAELE)DRBILAL -

EERITHRARNA QT REMBBE
ErRe -  HEROEREEENESRR

KA

M2024F3A31H ' EF RITHAHR AR A
S EAMAEEE (TR REAEMES7T1EFH
FHREEGO([#BHREEMRE ) E XV H)HAR
7 - HERD REEZFEEREES RBEK
BIZEXV B 7 & 8 9 BR A A& AN A A) M Bk S P Y
Ezm kKB (BEBRERES RBAEERIIEBIEX
BEWEFRBERBEENERRAXR) - SRR
BHRBABIRPIEI2IRATRNEARRAFE
&M AR SA R - SRR GEM £ TR Al
FEL546IKEFE567IRAMNEAR R R REERFTH
R IORBIT

RAQXDEBRODREBEROHNTRE

Percentage of

Number of Shares’ shareholding

BRBEA" IR AL B
412,500,000 55%
412,500,000 55%
412,500,000 55%
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Notes:
1. All interests stated are long positions.
2. Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung collectively are interested in one-

third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Mythe Group
Holdings Company Limited (“MGH Limited”) and they are therefore
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by MGH Limited by virtue
of the SFO.

3. Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Fu by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Directors nor any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 March 2024 as defined in Section 352 of
the SFO. In addition, at no time during the year had the Directors
and chief executive of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) any interest in, or been granted,
or exercised any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO). Save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 March 2024, the interests or short positions of person in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who
is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the
Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests or
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company
Name Capacity
=18 14
MGH Limited? Beneficial Interest
EmiEm
Ms Feng JingXin Beneficial Interest
ISYERT 2 £ BEmiEs
Notes:
1. All interests stated are long positions.
2. Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung collectively are interested in one-third

or more of the voting power at general meetings of MGH Limited and
they are therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by MGH
Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group, or any other
substantial shareholders whose interests or short positions were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award scheme as
set out below, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the

Group, or existed during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The share award scheme was adopted by the Board on 19
March 2021 (the “Share Award Scheme”). Under the Share
Award Scheme, the Board may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion, select any eligible persons and grant awarded shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) to them at no consideration. The
said eligible persons of the Share Award Scheme includes (i) any
individual or businesses that purchases the goods and services
from the retail stores or online sales services or its subsidiaries or
its consignment sales agent operated by the Company whom the
Board or its delegate(s) consider, in their sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group; (ii) any individual, being
a full-time employee, Director (including executive, non-exclusive
and independent non-executive Directors) whom the Board or its
delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed
or will contribute to the Group; and (iii) any individual or business
whom the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group. The awarded
Shares shall be acquired by an independent trustee, at the costs
of the Company, and held under a trust on and subject to, among
others, the terms and conditions of the Share Award Scheme.
Awarded Shares will be vested in the selected eligible persons
according to the terms of grant determined by the Board. Further,
since the Shares awarded will be granted to the said eligible
persons under the Share Award Scheme at no consideration,
the basis of determining the purchase price of the Shares is not
applicable.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there is no purchase of
awarded Shares by the Bank of Communication Trustee Limited (the
“Trustee”) (2023: 1,160,000 awarded Shares were purchased by
the Trustee at a total cost (including related transaction costs) of
approximately HK$60,000). As at 31 March 2024, the Trustee held
10,630,000 (2023: 10,630,000) Shares of the Company purchased
but not yet awarded under the Share Award Scheme. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights
in respect of any Shares held in the Shares Pool (as defined below).

As at 31 March 2024, no awarded Shares had been granted, vested
and lapsed pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. A summary of the
Share Award Scheme is set out below, with more details set out in
the announcement dated 19 March 2021:

Purposes and objectives

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to (i) recognize and
reward the contributions or potential contributions made or to be
made by the eligible persons to the Group; (ii) align the interests of
the eligible persons with those of the Company, and strive for the
future development and expansion of the Group; and (iii) attract
high-calibre personnel to join the Group and provide them with
incentives to participate in the continual operation and development
of the Group.
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Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of eight (8) years commencing on 19 March 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Administration

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the terms of the Share Award Scheme.
In addition, as provided for under the Share Award Scheme, the
Board entered into a trust deed (the “Trust Deed”) with Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited and appointed it as the trustee
to assist with the administration and vesting of the awards granted
under the Share Award Scheme and in accordance with the Trust
Deed.

Scheme limit

Upon share consolidation of every 10 existing Shares of par
value of HK$0.01 each into 1 consolidated Share of par value of
HK$0.1 each having become effective on 28 May 2024 (the “Share
Consolidation”), the maximum number of share awards which
may be awarded (or issued, as the case may be) under the Share
Award Scheme was adjusted from 75,000,000 Shares to 7,500,000
Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total number of
issued Shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date and as
at the date of this annual report (after adjustment upon the Share
Consolidation), respectively. The Board shall not instruct the Trustee
to subscribe for and/or purchase any Shares for the purpose of the
Scheme when such subscription and/or purchase will result in such

threshold being exceeded.

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
selected participant shall not exceed 1 per cent (1%) of the total
number of issued Shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date

(i.e. 750,000 Shares after adjustment upon the Share Consolidation).
Operation of the Scheme

The Board may from time to time, in its sole discretion, select any
eligible persons (other than any excluded persons) to participate in
the Share Award Scheme as selected participants and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded to such selected participants
out of the pool of Shares from which award shall be made (the
“Shares Pool”). The Board shall have the power to impose any
conditions on the rights of selected participants when deemed

appropriate.
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In order to satisfy any Award to be granted under the Scheme
from time to time, the Trustee shall maintain a Shares Pool which

comprise the following:

(i such Shares as may be purchased by the Trustee on the
Stock Exchange by utilising the funds allocated by the Board

out of the Company’s resources;

(i) such Shares as may be subscribed by the Trustee by utilising
the funds allocated by the Board out of the Company’s
resources, subject to the Company having obtained the
requisite shareholders’ approval in general meeting under
general mandate or specific mandate for the allotment and
issue of new Shares, the grant of listing of and permission to
deal in such Shares by the Stock Exchange, and compliance

with the applicable requirements under the GEM Listing Rules;

(iii)  such Shares as may be allotted or issued to the Trustee
as a holder of Shares, whether by way of scrip dividend or

otherwise; and

(iv) such Shares which remain unvested and revert to the Trustee

due to the lapse of the Award.

The Trustee may purchase the Shares on the Stock Exchange at the
prevailing market price (subject to such maximum price as may be

from time to time prescribed by the Board).

Where any award is proposed to be made to a connected person
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) and the relevant award
of the Shares is to be satisfied by an allotment and issue of
new Shares, such award shall be separately approved by the
shareholders in general meeting with such connected person and
his associates abstaining from voting and shall comply with all other
requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules applicable to

such award.
Termination and the Remaining Life of the Scheme

This Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of: (i) the eighth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected

participant.

Share awards in respect of 75,000,000 shares of the Company were
available for grant under the Share Awards Scheme as at 1 April
2023 and 31 March 2024, respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the written resolutions of
the sole shareholder passed on 6 March 2019 (the “Share Option

Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance
with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to the 31

March 2024, no share option was granted, exercised, outstanding,

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as

follow:

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below)
have had or may have made to the Group. The Share Option
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining
on-going business relationships with the Eligible
Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long term growth of the Group.

Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (c) below to the following persons (the “Eligible
Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i)  any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries;

(iiiy any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group,
the assessment criteria of which are:

(a) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(b) quality of work performed for the Group;

(c) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(d) length of service or contribution to the Group.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.
Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty-one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option
is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company available for
issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme has been adjusted from 75,000,000 Shares to
7,500,000 Shares upon the Share Consolidation, representing
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.
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(f) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed

1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.
(g) Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination

thereof.
(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on 6 March 2019, subject to early

termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

Share options in respect of 75,000,000 shares of the Company were
available for grant under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 April
2023 and 31 March 2024, respectively.

Since there was no option or award granted for the year ended 31
March 2024, the number of shares that may be issued in respect of
the options and awards granted under all schemes of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2024 divided by weighted average
number of shares in issue of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2024 is nil.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued share as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. For those related party transactions that
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as the case may be) under the GEM Listing Rules,
those transactions are exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no other
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions with
related parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual
report in accordance with the requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company confirms that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any business or interests in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business

of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to protect the Group’s interest in its business activities,
on 6 March 2019, each of Mr. Fu, Ms. Cheung, Ms. Fu and
MGH Limited, the controlling shareholders of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholders”) as covenantors executed the deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-

Competition”).
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In accordance with the Deed of Non-Competition, the Controlling
Shareholders jointly and severally agreed, whether as principal
or agent and whether undertaken directly or indirectly (including
through any close associate, subsidiary, partnership, joint venture
or other contractual arrangement of theirs), not to do the following
from the Listing Date and ending on the occurrence of the earlier of
(i) the date on which the shares of the Company cease to be listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange; or (ii) the date of which (a) the
Controlling Shareholders, individually or collectively cease to own,
directly or indirectly, 30% or more of the then issued share capital
of the Company and (b) the Controlling Shareholders, cease to

control the composition of a majority of the Board:

(a) directly or indirectly, either on their own account, in
conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm
or company, among other things, in any form carry on,
participate or be interested, engage or otherwise be involved
in or acquire or hold shares or interests in (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) or assist or support
a third party to engage in or participate in the current and
potential business engaged or to be engaged by the Group
including but not limited to design, production, retail and
wholesale of jewellery products (the “Restricted Business”)
and where they become aware of such engagement of the

Restricted Business they shall notify the Company forthwith;

(b)  solicit or procure any of the suppliers and/or the customers
of the Group from time to time to terminate their business
relationships or otherwise reduce the amount of business with

the Group;

(c) solicit or procure any of the Directors, senior management or
other employees of the Group from time to time to resign or

otherwise cease providing services to the Group; and/or

(d) unless with the prior written consent of the Company, disclose
any confidential information of the Group to any other third

parties.
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The Company has received a confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders on their compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Details of the undertaking has been set out in the section headed
“Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

BANK BORROWING

Particulars of bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 March 2024 are

set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of the
Group are set out in notes 9 and 34 to the consolidated financial

statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee include the review
and supervision of the financial reporting process, the internal
monitoring system and risk management system of the Group. As at
the date of this annual report, the audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong
Tat, Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

(chairman).
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, except for the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”), the Group has no material deviation from Part 2 of the
CG Code as set forth in Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report.
Code provision C.2.1 in Part 2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Fu is both
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In
view that Mr. Fu has been assuming day-to-day responsibilities in
operating and managing the Group, the Board believes that with
the support of Mr. Fu’'s extensive experience and knowledge in the
business of the Group, vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in Mr. Fu strengthens the solid
and consistent leadership and thereby allows for efficient business

planning and decision which is in the best interest of the Group.

The Directors consider that the deviation from code provision C.2.1
in Part 2 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group’s operations, and

sufficient checks and balances are in place.

The Directors are committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders as a whole. The principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection to
minimize the impact of its activities on the environment. It is the
policy of the Group to promote clean operation and strives to making
the most efficient use of resources in its operations, and minimizing
wastes and emission. Details are set out in Environmental, Social

and Governance Report on pages 55 to 97 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s operations are
mainly carried out by the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

committed by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no material subsequent event affecting the business or
financial performance of Group which has come to the attention of
the Directors after 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited,
who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM”) and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the auditors of the Company.

As at the date of this report, there has been no change in the

auditors of the Company in the preceding 3 years.

By order of the Board

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEREB®RSE

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”)
is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong. The Group
is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (B#E2k% )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group possesses
the means to control the diversity, quality and pricing of its own
jewellery designs produced in-house at its production facility in
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The Group’s principal products are jewellery products,

including gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and

demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

The Group adheres to the management policies of sustainable ESG
development. We are also committed to handling the Group’s ESG
affairs effectively and responsibly, which is integrated as one of the
core components of our business strategy as we believe this is the

key to our continuous success in the future.
The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”).
The Taskforce comprises core members from different departments
and is responsible for collecting relevant information on our ESG
aspects for preparing the ESG Report. The Taskforce reports
to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), assists in identifying
and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks and the effectiveness of
the internal control mechanisms. The Taskforce also examines
and evaluates our performances in different aspects such as
environment, health and safety, labour standards and product
responsibilities in the ESG aspects. The Board sets up a general
direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness

in the control of its risks and internal control mechanisms.

FEMRE HERERTEH

AEREEEERERAR(EAR ) ERE
MEAR(AREIRIRMDEUNRBENER
BEAREREHER - AREXREBH RN
ROBERF AR RO BIERE | R T EE
FIARMZERS  HEEBREM - EEEAR
BV - AR BBIEES EEREARKM
B ([l ERE AT B RAEERMBEE
MKRERFTZHE REREE AEEIEE
MARBER  BRELERKERESUITE

o
oA °

EMRE e hEamE((FRE DEELE
BAERE  HERERLNGER  FEIRER
WS EE A R R T E R AR ©

AEBEFRAAFERRNORE HERERNE
BT AGR AR A B iR A S B K IR
% HERERER - WAL E RIS B
B — @ LEs - EARMBEERERMER
RAEBEISKINEER -

B HERERAELRE

AEBRITRE @ RERTHENM(TIHE
L) o THENMEBRAKENREFNZLKE
MR BERERMAERE  HERERTEDN
HEBER RERAREANRE - TENESER
AEFERR - BEIPHAMFEARENIRE
Mg & B R B A K A £k AN B2 1 P AR 4 1) 44 7l 9
B - TRPMETEREMFERMERE -
HERERBEARE  L24E  HTIHRE-
EmBEESTRAITENKRE EFSREREAR
SERE e REAEE LA - ARER
LR B 4% il o PO BB 4%E 44 R 0 B AR

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT £ 3R

55



56

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HEREBHRE

®BiE

SCOPE OF REPORTING

Unless specified otherwise, the ESG Report covers the Group’s
operating segments, including seven retail stores under the brand
name of “Chong Fai Jewellery” which are strategically located
in Kowloon and the New Territories in Hong Kong, office located
in Hung Hum and the production facility in Shenzhen. The ESG
Report covers the Group’s policies, compliance issues as well as
key performance indicators (“KPI”) in two subject areas, namely,
environmental and social of the above segments under the Group’s
operation from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024. We will continue
to expand the scope of disclosure in the future as the Group’s
data collection system and sustainable development work further

develop.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all
applicable provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
contained in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

For the Group’s corporate governance practices, please refer to
pages 20 to 34 for the section “Corporate Governance Report”

contained in the Group’s 2023/24 Annual Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2024.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related to its
business and ESG issues. In order to understand and address
stakeholders’ concerns, we communicate with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to shareholders and investors, customers
and business partners, employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies
and government authorities, and media and the public through
different channels such as conferences and electronic platforms.
In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Group
takes into account stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve

our performance through mutual cooperation to create greater value
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Stakeholders

Expectations and Concerns

Communication Channels

. A HFAE AR

FOE HMEREE BERE
Suppliers o Fair and open procurement o Supplier management meetings and
HEms . N RA A events

. Sustainable sourcing U HEFNERESZENEED

° Supplier audit
. HEmER

o Procurement manager
°  RERE
Regulatory bodies and . Compliance with laws and . Compliance manager
government authorities regulations U AR
ESEHE RIS S . HERPAREER 0 On-site inspections
. Support economic U RS@wE
development o Project manager of regulatory bodies
o XS R e EEWBEALE
Media and the public . Involvement in communities . Community activities and partner
HES B AR . Fh[E £ 6 programs
. Business compliance J tLEEBNM A (ER AT S
e  EXBAAM e Media
. Environmental protection . e
awareness o ESG reports
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEREB®RSE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report to
assist the Group in reviewing our operations and identifying relevant
ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters to our
businesses and stakeholders. Based on the assessed significant
ESG issues, a data collection questionnaire was prepared to collect
information from relevant departments and business units of the
Group.

The following is a matrix showing the Group’s material ESG topics in
the ESG Report:
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Materiality Matrix of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
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MATERIAL ESG TOPICS

RiE - HEREREEERE

1. Emission management 2. Waste management
e E 2 REEYE R
8. Water management 4. Energy management
KRERE R BERE R
5. Use of packaging materials 6. Working environment
BEMEER THERE
7. Remuneration and benefits 8. Recruitment, promotion and dismissal
¥ B 224 A B - B KRR
9. Equal opportunities 10. Internal health and safety management
FEHE ARG B K 22 &2 B 38
11. Safety production 12.  Training management
LEREE 2HIE TR
13.  Supply chain management 14. Quality assurance
fHEsEE R HBERE
15. Protection of intellectual property (“IP”) Rights 16. Customer services
R ([ABER ) RE B F R
17. Advertising and labelling 18. Protection of privacy
B ERRE FhBS (R &
19. Anti-corruption 20. Corporate social responsibility
RE)S TrEMERE

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG
issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance
with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
Report or our performances in sustainable development by email:

info@chongfaijewellery.com.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Al.

Emissions

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development in its operations. With the aim to
reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
("GHG”) emissions, the Group has always been
exploring protection operating models of less impact
to the environment, recognising the importance of
environmental management, and striving to protect the
environment in order to fulfil the Group’s commitment to
social responsibility.

The Group’s mission is to minimise pollution to
the environment, make continuous improvement,
and comply with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. To achieve so, we have identified the
opportunities to reduce exhaust gas emissions,
wastewater discharge, water use, waste generation and
disposal, as well as energy consumption by analysing
the environmental risks within our operations, and
conducted regular monitoring to ensure the issues were
well managed.

The Group closely follows the latest national and
regional environmental protection laws and regulations,
thereby focusing on strengthening environmental
protection measures to comply with related local laws
and regulations and fully implement environmental
policies. The Group complies with applicable laws
and regulations, including “Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on Environmental
Impact Assessment”, “Administrative Regulations
on the Environmental Protection of Construction
Projects”, “Category-based Administration Catalogue
for Environmental Impact Assessment of Construction
Projects”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Law of
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC”, “Regulations
on Administration of Precursor Chemicals” and Hong

Kong’s “Waste Disposal Ordinance” etc.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did
not have any violation of relevant local environmental
laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas and
GHG emissions, water and land discharge, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that

have a significant impact on the Group.
Emission Management
Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group has generated limited amount of exhaust
gas emissions in its production facility. To mitigate
the exhaust gas emissions, the Group has engaged
independent qualified inspector to monitor and test the
water, air, soil, and other environmental conditions of its
production facility. It has also implemented its emission
control guidelines for cleaner production, for example,
dust filtering system, filtering system with activated
carbon absorbent and exhaust scrubber system were
installed to treat air pollutants which were mainly the
fugitive dust emissions and volatile organic compounds,
and met the legal emission standard before releasing
to the atmosphere. The installed systems, not only,
effectively reduce the exhaust gas emissions, but also

protect its workers’ health.
GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’'s GHG emissions are
direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) from combustion
of petrol for transportation and energy indirect GHG

emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity.

The Group actively adopts electricity conservation and
energy saving measures to reduce GHG emissions,

including:

o Adopts environmental conservation and energy
saving measures. Relevant measures are
described under “Energy Management” in Aspect
A2;

o Conducts monthly vehicle maintenance to reduce
fuel consumption effectively, thereby reducing

carbon and exhaust gas emissions;
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Conducts annual inspections to ensure the

compliance with national emission standards; and

Reduces the number of business trips through
utilising electronic communication such as video

conferences and WeChat meetings.

The employee’s awareness of reducing GHG emissions

has been increased through these GHG mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s total

GHG

emissions’' was approximately 135.79 tCO,e,

and its intensity? was approximately 1.89 tCO,e

per employee.® The Group’s direct GHG emissions

(Scope 1) from petrol consumption of vehicles was

approximately 1.76 tCO,e, and the energy indirect GHG

emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity was

approximately 134.03 tCO.e.

Notes:

1.

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
latest released emission factors of China’s regional power
grid basis and CLP Power Limited, “Global Warming
Potential Values” from IPCC Fifth Assessment Report
(AR5).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 72 full-time
employees in total which includes the office, retail
shops and production facility. The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s total
GHG emissions was approximately 124.59 tCO,e, and its
intensity was approximately 1.66 tCO.e per employee.
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Waste Management
Hazardous Waste Handling Method
Production facility

The Group produces a wide range of wastes across the
operations; therefore, it has established comprehensive
procedures to manage wastes — no matter whether they
are recyclable, non-recyclable or hazardous. Hazardous
wastes such as flammable materials (such as waste
cloth, waste gloves, waste cotton swabs and waste
cotton yarn) and corrosive wastes (such as container,
hydrochloric acid, electroplating rinse-wastewater) are
generally required more efforts and clear guidance
provided for the workers to follow including wastes
segregation, labelling, storage and transportation. The
Group has established guidelines in governing the
management and disposal of hazardous wastes, all the
hazardous wastes are collected by licensed contractors
for treatment, and complied with “The Measures for the
Administration of Permit for Operation of Dangerous
Wastes”. The Group purchases any precursor chemical
should report the type and quantity in demand, prior to
the purchase, to the public security authority of the local
people’s government at the county level in compliance
with the “Administrative Regulations on Precursor
Chemicals”. To promote waste reduction and recycling
practices, the Group encourages its employees to
recycle the recyclable materials and reuse useful parts
of the waste such as jewellery pieces and packaging to

divert the waste from landfills.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’'s
production of related products has decreased, leading
to the amount of hazardous wastes generated was

regarded as immaterial.
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Non-hazardous Waste Handling Method

The Group adheres to the waste management principles
and strives to properly manage and dispose all
wastes produced in its business activities. The waste
management practice has been complied with related
environmental protection laws and regulations. The non-
hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s business
activities mainly consist of paper, ink cartridges and
waste battery. After collection and sorting by the Group,
such wastes will eventually be collected and processed
by general waste service providers. Recyclables (such

as paper and ink cartridges) will be recycled.

The Group regularly monitors the consumption of paper,
ink cartridge and battery, and implements various
reduction measures. The Group emphasises the waste
management principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”
to encourage employees to sort waste at source and
recycle to achieve the objectives in waste reduction in
its operations. The Group maintains a high standard
in waste reduction, educates employees about the
importance of sustainable development and provides
relevant supports in order to enhance their skills and

knowledge in sustainability.

The Group has implemented measures to handle such
non-hazardous wastes and launched different reduction

initiatives, including but not limited to:

o Educated all employees on reducing the use of

disposable items such as plastic tableware;

. Purchased microwaves in offices to encourage
employees to take lunch boxes by themselves
instead of ordering takeaway food, which could

largely reduce the waste of food packages;
o Advocated the reusing of office stationeries; and

. Provided glass cups to clients and guests instead

of disposable ones.
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Paper Management
Office

One of the main natural resources consumed by the
Group is paper from its office printing machines. To
minimise the use of paper, the Group has put great

efforts into the implementation of following initiatives:

o Chosen suppliers with more environmentally
friendly paper source, so as to indirectly reduce
the amount of tree losses while consuming the

same amount of paper;

o Promoted paperless office, and disseminate
information by electronic means (i.e. via email or

e-bulletin boards) as much as possible;

o Set duplex printing as the default mode for most

network printers when printouts are needed;

o Disseminated the idea of “Think before print” by
using posters and stickers in offices to remind the

staff of avoiding unnecessary printings;

o Reconsidered boxes and trays as containers
beside photocopier to collect single-sided paper

for reuse and recycling;

o Used the back of old single-sided documents for

printing or as draft paper;
o Recycled used stationery whenever possible; and
. Used as less as paper whenever possible.
Retail shops

The Group’s retail shops has also consumed paper,
which are mainly the sales receipt notes. To minimise
the use of paper, the Group has put great efforts into

the implementation of following measures:

. Tried to minimise printing excessive sales receipts

notes whenever possible;

. Effectively distributed the sales receipts notes
to each retail shops according to their sales

performance; and
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. Used as less as sales receipts notes whenever

possible.

Through the above non-hazardous waste reduction
measures, the employee’s awareness in waste reduction
has been enhanced. For the year ended 31 March
2024, the Group’s total non-hazardous waste amount
was approximately 0.44 tonnes, its intensity was
approximately 0.006 tonnes per employee; in which
approximately 0.38 tonnes were paper, approximately
0.01 tonnes were ink cartridge and approximately 0.05

tonnes were waste batteries.*
Note:

4. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s total
non-hazardous waste were approximately 0.39 tonnes
of paper, approximately 0.01 tonnes ink cartridge and
approximately 0.05 tonnes of waste battery.

Wastewater

The Group’s major use of water occurs at its production
facility in the course of jewellery processing. The
wastewater may contain acids, alkali, various chemicals
and heavy metals. At the production facility in Shenzhen,
there is an onsite facility for neutralization, deionization
and sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water
is certified safe to discharge into the municipal network,
and the slag is properly handled by licensed operators.
The Group’s operation complies with the laws and
regulations, including but not limited to “Water Pollution
Control Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “the Law of PRC on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.

Since the office and retail shops’ wastewater discharged
by the Group will be disposed through the municipal
sewage pipe network to the regional water purification
plant, its water consumption amount is considered as
the amount of sewage discharged. The data on the
discharge of sewage will be described in the section

“Water Management” in Aspect A2.
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A2.

Use of Resources

The Group upholds and promotes the principle of
effective use of resources so as to monitor the potential
environmental impacts in our business operations.
Through the 3Rs principles, namely, “reduce, reuse
and recycle”, we promote green office and operation
environment, and minimise the environmental impacts of

the Group.

As mentioned in Aspect A1, the Group has set out
related environmental management policies and
procedures on resource usages such as water,
electricity and petrol. Monthly usage statistics are
used for focused management of the main energy
consumption equipment and regulation of equipment

operation for effective resource usage.
Energy Management

The major energy consumption of the Group in daily
operation are electricity consumption in the operation

and petrol consumption via transportation.

The Group has formulated rules and regulations to
achieve the goal of electricity saving and efficient
consumption. The relevant specific measures are as

follows:

o Selects energy-efficient equipment and electrical
appliances for production facility, office and shops

electricity use;

o Forbids the use of large-power electrical
appliances such as heaters, kettles, refrigerators,
etc., to avoid electricity overload. Employees
should turn off all electrical appliances that come

with them when they leave office;

o Turns off all unnecessary lights, air conditioners,
computers and other office equipment in office
areas, conference rooms and corridors when they

are not in use to avoid waste of electricity;

o Standardises office, production facility and even
retail shop lighting (when feasible) with energy
saving lights and LED lights;
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o Maintains indoor temperature at an optimal,

comfortable level to conserve energy;

o Switches off shop lightings by 11 p.m. as a
commitment to the “Charter on External Lighting”

organised by the Hong Kong Government;

o Regulates the use of air conditioners strictly to

prevent waste of electricity;

. Turns off computers (host and monitor) when
employees go out for a long time, and switch
computers to standby or sleep mode when

employees go out for lunch; and

o Enhances the maintenance and overhaul of
equipment, maintain the best condition of
all electronic equipment for effective use of

electricity.

As a result, the employee’s awareness was increased
by implementing these electricity and energy mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the total energy
consumption of the Group was approximately
267,470.27 kWh and its intensity was approximately
3,714.86 kWh per employee.® Petrol consumption from
vehicles was equivalent to approximately 6,416.27 kWh®,
and electricity consumption was approximately 261,054
kWh.

Notes:

58 For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s total
energy consumption was approximately 246,386.34 kWh,
and its intensity was approximately 3,285.15 kWh per
employee.

6. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group’s petrol
consumption was approximately 662.1 litres.
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Water Management

The Group’s major water consumption is from the
production facility, office and retail shops’ fresh-water
consumption. The Group encourages all employees
and customers to develop the habit of conscious water
conservation. The Group has been enhancing its water
conservation promotion. Environmental messages are
posted on pantry and washrooms to remind employees
to save water. The employees’ water conservation

awareness has been increased with the above water-

saving measures.

Due to the Group’s business nature and its operations
are mainly in the cities, while the mining and
alchemy processes are performed by subcontracted

organisations, the procurement of suitable water sources

is not relevant to the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the total water
consumption of the Group was approximately 1,404.04

cubic meters, and its intensity was approximately 19.50

cubic meters per employee.’

Note:

7. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s total
water consumption was approximately 838.17 cubic
meters, and its intensity was approximately 11.18 cubic

meters per employee.

Use of Packaging Materials

Since the Group has retail business, it uses packaging
materials including paper box, paper bag and jewellery

pouch. The Group is actively promoting the packaging

reduction measures, including:

o Tried to minimise excessive packaging when

customers make a purchase;

o Encouraged the use of reusable shopping bags
and offered customers an incentive for using

a reusable shopping bag instead of plastic or

paper; and

o Promoted buy-back programs or upcycling
programs to encourage new sales with a trade-in

of old gold that can be recycled and reused.
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http://harmony1.com/4-ways-to-reduce-the-waste-of-plastic-bags/
http://harmony1.com/recycling-upcycling-and-eco-cycling-trends/
http://harmony1.com/recycling-upcycling-and-eco-cycling-trends/
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For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
consumed approximately 0.54 tonnes of packaging
materials, which is approximate 0.007 tonnes per
employee. There were no paper boxes being consumed,
the consumption packaging materials consisted
of approximately 0.37 tonnes of paper bags and

approximately 0.17 tonnes of pouch bags. ®
Notes:

8. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s
packaging material consumption were approximately 0.56
tonnes, consisted of approximately 0.38 tonnes of paper
bags and approximately 0.18 tonnes of pouch bags.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s operations generate limited impact on its
environment due to its business nature. The Group still
pursues the best practice for environmental protection.
In addition to complying with related environmental laws
and regulations and international standards for proper
natural environment preservation, it has integrated
the concept of environmental protection and natural
resource conservation into its internal management
and daily operations in order to achieve the aim of

environmental sustainability.
Working Environment

The Group strives to provide employees with a
comfortable working environment to enhance working
efficiency. The Group maintains production facility,
office and retail shops discipline and environmental
hygiene, and ensures personal area and common areas
are neat and tidy. Employees monitor the conditions of
the community and workplace from time to time, set up
emergency plans in advance for risk mitigation, adopt
preventive and control measures for problem and risk
identification, and deal with the identified problems
and potential risks in time to maintain a sound working

environment.
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A4.

On the other hand, the Group regularly monitors
and measures indoor air quality of the workplace. It
maintains indoor air quality and filters pollutants and
dust via air purification equipment and regular cleansing

of the air conditioning system.
Climate Change Impact

The world’s climate has changed significantly in the
past decades — global temperatures have increased and
extreme weather events are becoming more frequent
and severe, which may cause disruptions to business
operations globally, and in turn adversely impact the

macro economy.

The Group mainly engages in the sale of self-
designed fine jewellery products. The increase in
global temperature may lead to an increase in energy
consumption by the Group’s offices and stores. The
Group will continue to monitor the potential risks
of climate change and its impacts on the Group’s
operations and customers, and devise and implement
preventive and emergency measures accordingly.
Besides, the Group will continue its efforts to control

energy consumption and carbon emissions.
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SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

Employees are the greatest and most valuable asset
of the Group and its core competitive advantage.
Therefore, its success highly depends on the ability
to attract, cultivate and retain employees. The Group
adheres to a people-oriented approach, standardises
labour employment management to respect and protect
the legitimate interests of every employee. At the
same time, the Group strives to ensure its employees’
occupational health and safety for protecting labour
rights, stimulating employee’s enthusiasm, initiatives

and creativity to build a harmonious staff relationship.

The Group actively complies with labour laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the “Labour
Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the PRC”,
“Regulations on the Implementation of the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC”, “Social Insurance Law of the
PRC”, “Interim Regulations on Levying Social Insurance
Premiums”, “Provisional Measures on Maternity
Insurance of Enterprise Employees”, “Regulation on
Unemployment Insurance”, “Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurances” and Hong Kong’'s “Employment
Ordinance”. The Group has accordingly formulated a
series of related personnel management policy to guide
employees to actively integrate personal pursuits into

the long-term of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance of laws and
regulations in respect of employment related issues
including but not limited to recruitment and dismissal,
remuneration and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination and

benefits and welfares.
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As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 72 full-time
employees in total, the following shows the details of the

Group’s human resources information:

ZERIE D 8 T AR B R E D

Employee distribution by gender Employee distribution by age group

36%  43% —

64%

W 3£ Male W 30554 | Below 30 years old
W 30-50 5% 30-50 years old
5138 LAk 51 years old or above

W &t Female

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system, and paid employees
based on the principles of fairness, competitiveness,
motivation, reasonableness and legitimacy. The
remuneration package of employees includes salary,
bonuses, allowances and commission. Salespersons are
entitled to guaranteed commission based on retail sales
amount, and will also be entitled to further commissions
subject to whether they can meet the sales target laid
out by the Group. Generally, employee salaries are
determined based on the employees’ qualification,
experience, position and seniority. The Group believes
that its remuneration package is competitive in the

market.

The Group has signed and executed the labour
contracts with employees in accordance with the
“Labour Contract Law of the PRC”, and Hong
Kong’s “Employment Ordinance”. The signing rate
of labour contracts is 100%. In accordance with
the law and ordinance, the Group pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees,
namely, endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund, to

ensure employees are covered by social insurance.
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The Group earnestly safeguards the legitimate interests
of labour in accordance with the requirement of the
national and local laws and regulations of the “Labour
Law of the PRC”. The Group respects the rights of
employees to rest and leave and the Group believes that
sufficient rest is good for employees to work efficiently
and so as increase productivity. The Staff Regulations
has issued to the employees to regulate the procedure
applying annual leave. The Group has also followed
the “Regulation on Paid Annual Leave for Employees”
and other relevant regulations, regarding the policies
about working hours, working overtimes and wages,
and paid annual leave. The Group puts emphasis on the

employees’ rights of rest periods and holidays.
Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group has continuously established and improved
its recruitment system. In the recruitment process, the
Group has standardised the hiring procedures and
recruitment principles, adhering to the hiring principles
of morality, knowledge, ability, experience and physique
applicable to the job positions. In such ways to
continuously attract talents by upholding principles of

justice, fairness and openness.

The Group has implemented a fair and open assessment
system to evaluate employees’ working performance and
internal assessment results. The results would be the
basis for employee promotion. The Group also creates
opportunities for their promotion and development as

well as explore their potential at work.

The Group specifies the basis and procedures for
staff promotion, transfer and demotion management,
and regulations for departure process to protect the
interests of both employees and the Group and reduce

the conflicts in between.
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The management believes that employees are important
assets of the Group, and remains committed to
attracting and retaining talent with diverse backgrounds
for achieving sustainable growth and maintaining a
stable turnover rate. The turnover rates of the Group’s

workforce as at 31 March 2024 are as below:

By Region it &
Hong Kong & 16%
Mainland China /B R 9%
By Gender 14 3]

Female % 15%
Male 5 8%

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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By Age RF ik

<30 25%
30-50 17%
>51 8%

By Work Location & T {Eith B
Office A= 18%
Store 5% 16%
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B2.

Equal Opportunities

The Group strictly complies with national and local
standards by adopting a fair, equitable and open
requirement process and develop relevant system files
to eliminate discrimination in the recruitment processes.
Employees face no discrimination regardless of race,
sex, colour, age, family background, ethnic tradition,
religion, physical fitness and nationality and thus
allowing them to enjoy fair treatment in every aspect
including recruitment, remuneration, training and

promotion.
Health and Safety

The Group highly recognises the importance of health
and safety of the employees. The Group commits to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and comfortable
working environment and strives to eliminate potential
health and safety hazards at the workplace. The Group
strictly enforces relevant laws and regulations such as
the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases”,
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC” and
“Fire Protection Law of the PRC”, “Occupational Safety

and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong, etc.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022, the Group did not aware of any
accidents that resulted in death or significant physical
injury no lost days due to work injury, and no claims
or compensation were paid to its employees due to
such events. No material non-compliance of laws and
regulations relevant to health and safety of employees

were found.
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Internal Health and Safety Management

The Group maintains an internal audit and inspection
system to ensure the health and safety of customers
and employees during its operation in compliance with
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”. The review processes are
designed to ensure the workplace is under constant
monitoring, so as to identify and correct the deficiencies
that do not meet the standards. The Group regularly
inspects and reviews the safety issues of production
facility, offices and retail shops and actively encourages
employees to report health and safety incidents and

risks.

On the other hand, the Group provides staff with health
and safety notifications to provide related information
and increase their awareness. The Group also arranges
body checks for employees, particularly pay attention
to those who have abnormal examination result and

provide treatment advice.
Safety Production

The safety issue is highly concerned by the Group. The
Group has also cooperated with independent consulting
firm to ensure the production safety by establishing
GB/T 33000-2016 “Guideline of China Occupational
Safety and Health Management System”, and AQ/T9006-
2010 “Basic Norms for Work Safety Standardization
of enterprises” which in compliance with “Work Safety
Law of the PRC”. The mishandling of machinery in the
jewellery production may cause injuries. To safeguard
the workers, inspection on production facilities would
take place on regular basis to prevent the safety hazard.
The inspection includes the proper usage of safety
equipment aligning with safety production procedures,
and the cleanliness of the production facility. Any
hidden safety danger would be immediately treated by
the technical staff to protect the personal safety of the

workers.
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B3.

Fire Safety

The Group has also formulated fire safety system in
accordance with the “Fire Protection Law of the PRC”
and “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration
of Fire Protection of Construction Projects”. To raise
employees’ fire prevention awareness, fire drills are
conducted regularly and staff are instructed to the
correct use of fire extinguishers and the Group’s
fire evacuation plans are improved. In response to
emergencies, different places of the Group’s workplaces
are also equipped and clearly located with first aid kits

and fire extinguishers.
Development and Training

The Group aims to build a strong sense of community
and a positive environment for its employees to enhance
employee loyalty and work dedication. The Group
believes that its ability to recruit and retain experienced
and skilled labour is key to growth and development.
The Group provides employee orientation to its new
employees to explain the Group’s internal rules and to
enhance employees’ safety awareness. The Group also

provides various types of employee training regularly.
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Training Management

The management formulates the Group’s annual
training proposal and conducts regular reviews on
the effectiveness of the training courses to improve
the quality of the training system. The Group provides
relevant on-the-job training for each employee to
facilitate their business abilities. For examples, the
salespersons in the retail shops would be trained
with the sales skills and etiquette with facing the
customers; the workers in the production facility would
be trained with the advanced skills. Through various
trainings, employees are able to strengthen related
professional knowledge, professions and management
skills. It benefits the Group by enhancing employees’
professional skills and attracting more talents. The
Group also provides subsidies, remuneration and

promotion incentives to encourage employees to

participate in external training courses.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, all employees of the
Group have attended trainings. The average training
hours for male and female were approximately 10 hours
and 12 hours respectively, in which employees with
managerial grade or above attained approximately 10
hours of trainings on average, while employees with

managerial grade or below attained approximately 12

hours of trainings on average.

The Group also recognises the importance of
occupational safety training to ensure employees’
personal safety. The relevant policies have been

described in details in Aspect B2 “Health and Safety”.

B4. Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group complies with the “Labour Law of the PRC”,
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” of
PRC, and Hong Kong'’s “Employment Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws

and regulations in relation to the prevention of child or

forced labour.
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The Group strictly prohibits the use of any child and
forced labour in the PRC and Hong Kong operations.
The Group demands all new employees to provide true
and accurate personal information when they join the
Group. The recruitment staff will stringently verify their
information, including body check results, academic
certificates, identity card and hometown information.
Regular reviews and checking are conducted to guard
against child or forced labour in the operations. The
Group also avoids using the supplies and services of
those suppliers and contractors with records of using
child or forced labour. Furthermore, employees work
overtime on a voluntary basis, and the Group promises
not to force employees to work overtime to prevent any
breach of labour standards. The Group also prohibits
any punishments, management methods and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, physical punishment, physical
abuse, oppression, sexual harassment, etc. against its

employees for any reason.
Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values the importance of potential
environmental and social risks management in its supply
chain. For the effective monitoring of procurement
procedures and cost control, increasing management
transparency in procurement, the Group has established
a stringent and standardised procurement system and a
systematic selection process for suppliers. For the year
ended 31 March 2024, the Group had approximately 20

suppliers, all of them were from the PRC.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group expects suppliers to fulfil the standards
in terms of environment, society and corporate
governance, commercial ethics and quality. The Group
selects suppliers that create positive influences on
environmental and social matters, the scopes of which
mainly includes operational compliance, employees’
safety and health, social responsibility, business ethics
and environmental protection. Since the Group does
not enter into long-term contracts with suppliers, it can
switch the suppliers flexibly. The Group will terminate
cooperation at instant with those suppliers who may
cause severe contamination or seriously social harms or
have caused material environmental or social incidents.
With the above assessment processes, the Group can
minimise potential environmental and social risks of

supply chain.
Fair and Open Procurement

The Group’s procurement procedures strictly abide by
the “Bidding Law of the PRC” and related regulations.
The Group makes procurement on an open, fair and
impartial basis without any discrimination against
any particular supplier nor corruption and bribery.
The Group sources the raw materials of diamonds,
gemstones and precious metals from suppliers at stable
and competitive market prices. The Group believes it
does not rely on any single supplier for sourcing any
raw material to material extent. In addition, the Group
forbids employees and any parties who are related
to the relevant supplier to take part in the subject
procurement. The Group stresses the integrity of its
suppliers, it only selects those with good business track
records and no material non-compliances or unethical

behaviours.
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B6.

Product Responsibility

The Group actively safeguards the quality of the
products with its internal control process. The Group
also maintains on-going communication with the
customers to ensure understanding and satisfaction
of their demands and expectations, and to improve its
service quality by learning their satisfactory rates. The
Group earnestly complies with laws and regulations
in relation to consumers’ rights such as the “General
Principles of the Civil Law of the PRC”, “Product Quality
Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests”, “Tort Law of the PRC”,
“Law of PRC on Imported and Exported Commodity
Inspection”, “Advertising Law of the PRC”, “Patent Law
of the PRC”, and Hong Kong’s “Personal Data (Privacy)

Ordinance” and “Trade Descriptions Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with any
laws and regulations in relation to privacy issues
and compensation regarding health and safety,
advertisement and labelling on products and service
provided. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
was not aware of any products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons, nor receiving

material complaints related to products and service.
Quality Assurance

The quality of the jewellery is one of the key factors
that customers highly concern. The Group has a quality
monitoring requirement and quality control inspection
before the delivery of the products. The Group has
set up a centralized Quality Control Team, which is
responsible for monitoring the entire production process.
The Group performs quality control in each stage,
ensuring the products are with satisfactory quality. We
would have overall inspection in the last stage to ensure
the product is made according to the specification
stated. The Group would also conduct random sample
checking by the experienced professionals on the
finished jewellery products to ensure that it is up to

standard.
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The quality of products is reliable and has been ensured
by different organisations. Hong Kong Jewellers’ and
Goldsmiths’ Association and The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association have recognised the quality of
our gold products with the “Quality Gold Mark”. Besides,
the Group is also recognized by the Quality Tourism
Services (“QTS”) Scheme of Hong Kong Tourism Board,
as the reliable retail store in Hong Kong. The products
are highly qualified to ensure customers would not
receive products that are substandard to safeguard the

consumers’ right.
Protection of IP Rights

The Group focuses on pioneer innovation in its own
jewellery design. The Group has sufficient and all-
rounded management system for IP. The Group
continuously strengthens the management of
trademark, domain right, designs and trade secrets
in the product development processes. The external
graphic designers, who outsourced for certain product
development stages, would be required to sign an
agreement to acknowledge that the designs produced
during the engagement are the IP of the Group. For
new employees, the Group focuses on training their
awareness of conserving trade secrets. The IP, which
mainly related to the trademark and designs, are well
protected by the Group and it values the intellectual

properties as the important assets of the Group.
Customer Services

The Group would provide after-sales service like
resizing of rings and complimentary cleaning services
to maintain a good relationship with customers. The
Group reviews all complaints from customers, suppliers
and partners in accordance with internal procedures
and guidelines, and appropriate follow-up measures
will be taken. If applicable, the Group will conduct
relevant investigations and generate case reports and
correcting action plans to resolve complaints and make
improvements accordingly. The Group believes that
complaints are good opportunities to get feedback
from the community and customers, so as to assure the

necessity of improving the services and policies.
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Advertising and Labelling

The Group has adopted a multi-channel advertising
strategy to promote the brand and improve the brand
image. The Group takes care of the advertisement and
labelling issues to ensure that only accurate products’
information would be published. Any misleading
message is prohibited for publishing after the strict

monitoring of the teams of professionals.
Protection of Privacy

The Group recognises the protection of customers’
and partners’ privacy is the key for success. Therefore,
protecting and maintaining customers’ privacy always
remain in the first priority of the Group. Security
measures have established to provide adequate
protection and encryption for all data and information
upon operation. At the same time, the Group has
implemented policies and procedures to the collection

and use of personal data.
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is
the key to its continuous success. Therefore, the Group
stressed on anti-corruption work and system building,
devoted in creating a clean and transparent corporate
culture. It has already developed adequate codes and
provide anti-corruption trainings to ensure all employees
(including directors) adhered to the highest standards of
business, professional and ethical practices. The Group
strictly complies with the requirements under laws and
regulations such as the “Company Law of the PRC”,
“The Tendering and Bidding Law of the PRC”, “Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery”, and Hong

Kong’s “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”.

The Group’s major operation formulated such policies
on the control and prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering between shareholders and
related parties in each business operation and trade

activity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did
not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. There is no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Company or its employees during the year ended 31
March 2024.

Anti-bribery

The Group has an anti-bribery function, which is
responsible for developing the overall framework of anti-
bribery, fraud and corruption policies and procedures.
It also guides and monitors the implementation of such
policies and procedures in different aspects of the
Group’s operation. Each of the Group’s subsidiaries
will immediately report any suspected bribery, fraud
and corruption to the person in charge of the Group’s
internal control. The internal control advisor was
engaged to perform internal control review on the Group
and determine the appropriate course of actions if

necessary.

The Group fully complies with relevant anti-money
laundering laws. The Group minimises the risk
of establishing relationships with individuals or
organisations involved in money laundering or terrorist
activities through “understanding customers” and

assessment procedures.
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B8.

Community Investment

The Group believes in shouldering the responsibility
of contributing society. As a responsible corporate
citizen, the Group has fulfilled our social responsibilities
by being committed to supporting various charitable
and community activities. The Group hopes to
foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
thus encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community. The Group
has also encouraged its employees to participate in
environmental and charitable activities, make donations
to assist underprivileged students and engage in social
services. The Group believes that the participation in
activities that repay society can increase its employees’

civic awareness and establish their correct values.
Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has also joined different chambers of
commerce to support the charity activities. The Group
has become the members of Kowloon Chamber of
Commerce and New Territory Chamber of Commerce
and has supported many of the charity activities to
repay the community. Besides, the Group has also
donated to the Youth Outreach’s “YO! Let's Walk the
Road” to support the service provided by the Youth
Outreach on rescuing the teenagers who are in needs.
The Group will seek opportunities to identify more
suitable projects and contribute to the community and

environment to bring positive progress to society.
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BHEUEER

REEEMATIANES @ UX
FIRELY - AKECKA/NER
BERMAEBENEE KA
SR AEMBALE o b - NEE
NABELENIHEEETIER
NXBFBEFINREHORE - BR
BEFRENFTLF - AEEHZ KK
€ SREZAEMNEE  RiE
MERBELER BREELGH
R o
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RIE -HE8KRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

aHE

BERBEXSGMERQAN(RE g
BREESDRBRSIE

RES

Subject Areas, Aspects,

RS AE UEIT A1

emissions data.

PERR R R AR E Y -

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
BH - - —REERBARERIER it -1 1]
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA: BBy
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
— R ER BRERIOREREYN - MK R LA | R
s BEMEBETBERZVHNELSTH
(a) HE: R
(b) BETFHETABEATENEMEE
KR PIEE RS
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Emission Management,

Waste Management
Y — BEER - BEEYERE

KPI A1.2

RS AR A1.2

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.
BERBRYRE(UNETE) RETE -

Emissions — Emission Management

PR — PR E R

KPI A1.3

RS MIEIR A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FTESXBEEEDRE (UEAE) REE -

Emission — Waste Management
(not applicable — explained)
R — EERDER(TNER — BERE)

KPI'A1.4

RASR AR MHEIR A4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.

FEEREEEYEE UHAE) REE

Emissions — Waste Management

PER) — EERYE R

KPI' A1.5

BASERIEIRA1S

Description of emission targets set and
steps taken to achieve them.
RRFTET L WEEE B E R AEEE AR
FTEREREY 5% -

Emissions — Emission Management,
Waste Management

HE) — BRI EE - ERMER

KPI A1.6

FARETIIRIZA1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled and a
description of reduction targets set and
steps taken to achieve them.

f BRIR A = REEERY L - R
RIS HYRRE B R MR E DS L B R PR

Emissions — Waste Management

BERRY) — BEEME IR
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REERBARERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBHEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,

including energy, water and other raw

Use of Resources

materials.
— AR ER ARFERER(BERIR - KREMEME) | ERER
B ©
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources — Energy
consumption by type in total and Management
intensity.
BABAERIEIR A2.1 RERISWERER SHEEREEER |BRER — LRERE
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. | Use of Resources — Water Management
R IEIEIR A2.2 BREKEREE ° BRER — KERER
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Use of Resources — Energy
targets set and steps taken to achieve Management
them.
RARIE IR A2.3 it REANR AR R RERGSLBERN |BRER — RRERE
PREREY 22 5%: ©
KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue |Use of Resources — Water Management

BB BIEIRA2.4

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency targets set and steps
taken to achieve them.
FAUSKEGE A KR R B AR - BAKRFT
FI M H KR B AR R A ERE L B R PTER
54 0pa 2

BRER — KERER

KPI A2.5

RRAEMIEIRA2.5

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.

S mPA B EEMHNAE (AEEE) R E
HEBMGE -

Use of Resources — Use of Packaging

Materials

BRER — BEMEHER
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®BiE

HTERER

wE

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPlIs

—BREERBARERER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

EHEA3 : BERRXARER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment

and natural resources.

The Environment and Natural Resources

RS RUEIR AS.1

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R E BB HRIZERRANERNEAZE
REFRRERBBEZENITE °

— R ER HBRIREHEER AT GHETAEELE | RIEE(LZENEER -
WEARRBEEBEEE
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of | The Environment and Natural Resources

— Working Environment

BRERRRER — TERE

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BT A4 - RIR#ZL

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

Climate Change Impacts

RS AEMUEIR A4

related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
BRI RGHETAEETYENEAR
RIFEASEE - RIEHTTE -

—MREE BRIREHDARAESHETAEETE |RIRE(LTE
MEARIEAEREE OB
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Climate Change Impacts

ARBLTE
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REERBARERIER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, antidiscrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFMREE  BEREA - TERE-

BE - 2k FERE  REBARHEA

@ RN

(a) BXR: &

(b) BETFHETABEATENEMEE
KRG ERL -

Employment

(=

KPI B1.1

RASE A ME1R B1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

IR - EIEEE - Fhodnl bR E 5
BE®EE -

Employment

(=

KPI B1.2

BAAEMIEIRB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.
BRI FEER RIEE 5 Y E B

Employment

B
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oo 32 = A
RIE -HEBRERERS
Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE  —REERBRERER it 5 B8H

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EmB2: BREERE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  Anti-corruption compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

BASEAEMIE1R B2 1

occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.
BEIF(BEERFE)ZFFETEBRM
SR AB LR o

— MR ER FRRMLE2TIERERREREEBERE |EREZS
HEER
(a) WX &
(b) HEFHEITAFTEATEMNERER
NIRPIEE RS o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities | Health and Safety

[EAE e

BT RERTX -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RIS IEIE1R B2.2 EITSERTERE - EREL S
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
RARIE ISR B2.3 R FTER B R E R R e 2887 - AR | EREZ S

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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HE

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

—RIFERERERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EmEB3 : HERIEZI

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work. Description of training activities.

Development and Training

— AR ER ERRAEERITIIEREN B RRAEN | ZREEE
IRER o fiE RS o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training

BASAE ST B3.1

by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RUEBIREEHN(NEREERE  PRE
BEZ)EINTIEETIL

KPI B3.2

BASRAE 51T B3.2

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee

category.

RIERREERFE D - BRESTHZI
EREE e

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EMB4 : & TR

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

Labour Standards

labour.
— AR ER BRADT IEE Tekaa 45 TH) 25 TR
(a) BXR: &
(b) BETFHETABEATENEBEE
KRB ERL
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards

FASEAE SR B4.1

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

st i AT AR B IV e LA 2 B T R og
BT o

& TR

KPI B4.2

FASRIENIEIE B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

fie st A2 35 BRI AR B UL AS OHBR B B B L BT ERER
R o

Labour Standards

T2
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPlIs

BH - —REERBERERIER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

EBEBS : fEEERE

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and

social risks of the supply chain.

Supply Chain Management

BASEAE 51T B5.1

region.
iR E o EREE o

— M EE EERHEERNIRE R gRBEBCR o HEEE R
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

KPI B5.2

BASEAEIEIR B5.2

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

fi 5 R A R A S B - [ E T AR
BHINHEEREE - ARBBENORTR
ERTIEK -

Supply Chain Management

HiEsEEE

KPI B5.3

i
o

BB IEIR B5.3

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along

the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

it B B RS AIRETRIE R
EBREER] - A NARBERIT M EERTTX -

Supply Chain Management

HEEEE

KPI B5.4

RASE 4R 515 B5.4

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

Fie AR E P R R 52 2 R AREE mm SR
BEED - URBBERITRERITE -

Supply Chain Management

HrEEEe
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REERBARERIER

Description
it

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating

to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

BHFREERTRBOEREZS &

& BEERLEZEARBRA AR

(a) BX: Rk

(b) ETFHBITABEATZENEBEE
KR PIENEHL

Product Responsibility

KPI B6.1

BASEAE 51T B6. 1

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

EEREEXEmBETEAR 2 BERIEH
MmZE B E B 7L, o

Product Responsibility

EmAfE

KPI B6.2

FAS A 515 B6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

BRI E m M RIS B A A R 7
% e

Product Responsibility

oH

EmEE

KPI B6.3

BASAE MRS B6.3

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

fie it R A N RIS AR E B RIS -

Product Responsibility

EmAE

KPI B6.4

BASRAEMIEIE B6.4

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
RS SRTEBEREMBWIZF °

Product Responsibility

EmAE

KPI B6.5

FASERUEIE B6.5

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

it B & B RHMRIE RALRBUR - SARABRE
MITRERFE -

Product Responsibility
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a8 ¥R E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

BH - —REERBERERIER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

Anti-corruption

RASEAE S 1R B7 .1

regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERBALEETASEEERBETE S
BT FARMHIEIE RAFARER ©

— AR ER BRI IEFEES - B1R - BMEFROERER RE)S
(a) WX &
(b) ETFHBTABEAZENEBEE
NIRPIEE RS o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption

R&E5F

KPI B7.2

MR EMIEIE B7.2

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

et [y S i SR R EAE T - AR BIAT
BERTIEK -

Anti-corruption

REF

KPI B7.3

RS M 15 B7.3

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
HlmESERE TRENRESHF -

Development and Training

R A
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE - - —RIEERERERER it 5 B8H

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEB8 : HBRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to Community Investment

understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

— M AR R2ERBEREEMELRBFEN |HERE
BREEBZHEE BiEFSOEE
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment

education, environmental concerns,

labour needs, health, culture, sport).

R4 AIE 15 B8 1 EIEHEE(IHE  BREH  BIF |HERE
KR e BE) ©
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or Community Investment

time) to the focus area.
BB AE IR B8.2 EEIHREMBAER(NSEFFRH) © HERIRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUBRHERE

Grant Thornton

2 [E]

To the members of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings
Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 106 to 223, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting

policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

FABKESEEZERARDE
(REASHBEMEINARQE)
EERRR

=R

ZEEETHNF 106 2223 BRIEHKESE L
BRERAR([ERAR D REMNBAR(FHEES
E ) eire M gmE - BN 2024F3 A31H
iR BRI BERBEZBIEFENGZEE
mEEMEERGE  RERmEBRKEGEEAIR
ENER ' UREESMBHREMT  BFEERE
STBURER ©

EERR  RENBHRRERBEDASHAAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHERE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter

BEESTER

ERER

EEERBEBEEGMASRMOBTEE LR
(IBFRBFEAETET - BFEXFER
THRENEFCEARSZBERETZEH
BHRJAENRE IO FEE TR - RIE
ARG ASBRMNEXSFEERTA T
al]) - EFBURN BEE XCETTAFRH
HiEREREME - EFHE  EEMESHE
FAAREREAD MEEMAESNETEREHRE

it o

REESEE

FRETFEERBEESFNEEHE - BAHAN
PG AR BREANEITR/ERENER - FLF
HAREBSETBERFAMBHRREABRRE
ETRIEN - B HELEREREBENE
=1

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EENETNAIREEEREE

FEEE
ERAE I EIREMNE3.8 4K 18

Valuation of inventories
Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial

Statements

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of inventories Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of

inventories included the followings:

EEEMTEHENETREFEE

was HK$62,890,000, net of provision for inventories of
HK$4,413,000, representing approximately 53% of the

Group’s total assets.
e obtained an understanding of the Group’s process and

M202443 A31H ' FE#/REE 462,890,000 % Jt (1
BT ERE 4,413,000870) ' h EEEREELS53% °

control over the valuation of inventories;
TH BEXEEHTFEHREMERRIES

e understood how management identifies slow-moving
inventories and management’s process in monitoring
the quality of work of the independent professional

gemologist appointed;

THREEBNABNFHEELBERRSE  URE
BEEEREREBYEXEREEMIFERNER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
EENESTNAIRERRESEE

FEEE — &
ERA A BREN 38 4% 18

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Valuation of inventories (Continued)

Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial

100

Statements

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the amount of provision
on inventories, it is the Group’s policy to review the
net realisable values of inventories periodically with
reference to current market condition and the historical
experience in selling goods of similar nature. The
Group’s management reviewed, on a regular basis, the
suitability of its inventory provision policy and has applied
the policy consistently. The Group’s management also
reviewed, on a regular basis, the inventory ageing list to
identify any slow-moving inventories and estimated the
amount of provision primarily based on the pricing policy
and strategies and the historical experience in selling
goods of similar nature. The Group also engaged an
independent professional gemologist to perform valuation
and assess the conditions of certain items based on
gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery products with
reference to international diamond prices, its expertise

and the current market situation.

HINREMBRRME4AEE A FERENS -
EEENBERSRAERTARBEEHERUNERNBE
RELAERRNFENERFE - BERETEETHRT
HEEREBHRENHEE  YEL BERB@AEEX - =
SEERETERRMERSE - HREMRBHEEFE L
ERFEERRRRBAKBEHEEERUERLRMETT
BESE -1 BERETZBEBYEXEIREE T AL
ThE - Y2RERELER EFEMBLBAFTR Y
KEEREMHNEOQAFHETHENTZETFEENMNR -

Accordingly, we identified the valuation of inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with the judgments associated with determining the amount

of provision on inventories.

Hit - ERESRE GV BERRNEBEREUANEEFE
BiETENERAE  FENGERGSBREAEE -

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

assessed the appropriateness of provision on
inventories made by management and the accuracy of
the net realisable values by comparing the subsequent
selling prices of similar products less estimated costs
to be incurred for completion and disposal, to their

carrying amounts on a sample basis;

AHEEREMEFERENSENL - WEBKEREL
EmrHEBERRMAT TR EBEEN B ERAEERK
EEFL LB - R o] SRR E R R

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional gemologist and
obtained an understanding of the scope of work and

the terms of engagement;

AEBUEXEAETMNER eI RFEILE X7
RETHEREREENRBHER

understood the valuation process carried out by the
independent professional gemologist on selected
jewellery items and checked the carrying amounts
of selected jewellery items to the jewellery appraisal
report to test that these items were recorded at lower

of cost and net realisable value;

THRBN BEE A EERMEEERE E E TR A ETRE
Fo iR EHE e e R E AR E (A ER ST
¥ BURIE S A IR A AR R AT B IR R E R & R R EUR
YN
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Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRRETSEE EENENATEEERASEE

attended the annual physical inventory count at
year end date with assistance of an independent
professional gemologist engaged by us to compare
the net realisable values of selected jewellery items

held by the Group with their costs;

EHEMNZENBLEXRELAERNHE T - NFER
SEFEEMFERY  KMBARERANEERE
B R B IFEEK LR

checked the accuracy of the inventory ageing list, on
a sample basis, by tracing to the invoices and delivery
documents; and

FRBEERRRINXM  EREFERE N £
MR

assessed the reasonableness of provision on identified
slow-moving non-diamond gem-set jewellery products

by checking the ageing profile, historical sales pattern

and the subsequent sales of these inventories.

BRREMHEN BRI R RS RO
% FEDHAABEOEREEAREREER -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
2023/2024 annual report of the Company, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Hi &
BERRESFHHEMENEE - HttEH BT

N E AR 2023/2024 FFERANEILER - B
BIEGATBHRE LT ENZERRE

SUHEAMBRENE R TEELMER -
SRR E R AR R R AT R SR

ABESHRAMBHRRNET f{_{m
EEMER - ELEES %J‘%Em%ﬂ

,Jw SMBEMEXE FEETBIER FETME’\J’%
AEHEEREEXE AT FEEAERRANT

e %B@%%E%ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂlf’ﬁ FIMREFASEM
ERFEERERRL  BEEFEREZFE -
HESE - Eéi?/ﬁﬁf{rﬁiﬁ% g

EERGREMBBRRARENER

ERAREEZABEREBEESSIMASEANE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Y #2 BED R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagements and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUBRHERE

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURHERE

From the matter communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
is therefore the key audit matter. We describe this matter in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11" Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

24 June 2024

Lam Wai Ping
Practising Certificate No.: P07826
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEeRakEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # %= 202443 A 31 HILFE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FHET F&ET
(Restated)
(E5)
Revenue Uk %5 5] 142,274 136,822
Cost of goods sold B & mA A (103,091) (104,718)
Gross profit EF 39,183 32,104
Other income HabU A 6 688 2,296
Other (losses)/gains, net Hib(BE) WS FE 7 (498) 87
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD A (20,366) (20,160)
General and administrative —R BT
expenses (15,804) (15,822)
Finance costs B 75 B AN 8 (1,249) (1,219)
Share of losses of associates FEIGEE N R Z 518 (102) (197)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BREBATER(E18) 9 1,852 (2,911)
Income tax (expense)/credit s (M%), H&E 12 (260) 741
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREF,(FE) 1,592 (2,170)
Other comprehensive FEREMEZAEARS

expense for the year
Item that may be reclassified

Hi&A[RE B D IEE

subsequently to profit or loss: BmhyEA -
Exchange difference arising on T INE ST = A B

translation of a foreign operation =% (933) (638)
Item that will not be reclassified ER T eREN P EEER

subsequently to profit or loss: EORERE]
Actuarial gains on long service RERG B ENBE KRR

payment obligations 27 69 114
Other comprehensive expense for FREMEEAY -

the year, net of income tax MBRATS 1R (864) (524)
Total comprehensive income/ FRAZEKRA (BX)HALE

(expense) for the year 728 (2,694)
Earnings/(Loss) per share BRERN (&#E)
Basic and diluted (HK cents) R K H#EE GBI 10 2.12 (2.89)

106 CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B BARR R

As at 31 March 2024 7202443 A 31 H

2024 2023
2024 20234
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
(Restated)
(4 =51)
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMRE 14 13,530 15,934
Interests in associates REEE R 2 15 17,322 17,424
Deferred tax assets IEAETR A E E 17 5,528 5,788
Other receivables H fth FE U SR IE 19 704 2,261
37,084 41,407
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 62,890 58,984
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk EH fb fE U FRIE 19 5,151 4,202
Financial assets at fair value BAFERF AR
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") HNeaEE 16 1,844 3,066
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 20 11,159 20,657
81,044 86,909
Current liabilities REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAFER IR 21 6,171 6,195
Contract liabilities BB E 22 5,882 4,902
Refund liabilities REEE 23 444 463
Lease liabilities HEaE 24 7,769 7,732
Amount due to controlling FE A 152 AR AR 3R kI8
shareholder 25 - 5,000
Bank borrowings HRITHERK 26 22,799 28,856
Long service payment obligations RERB AT 27 11 4
43,076 53,152
Net current assets REEEFE 37,968 33,757
Total assets less current liabilities BEELZLERABERS 75,052 75,164
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE 24 3,433 4,456
Long service payment obligations RERB2EE 27 695 512
4,128 4,968
Net assets EEFE 70,924 70,196
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

As at 31 March 2024 72024 3 A 31H

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 &
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt et FET FET
(Restated)
(=751)

Capital and reserves BAEAR#E
Share capital A% AR 28 7,500 7,500
Reserves HE 63,424 62,696
Total equity EReE 70,924 70,196

Fu Chun Keung
R

Director

EZE

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Cheung Lai Yuk
REE
Director

EZE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERDBBX

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

Shares
held for
the Share
Share Share Award Other Exchange Retained
capital premium* Scheme* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
AR
am
EEE -
BRE  BRHEE ZBRe  HittdE EXRE REER i
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
8T T8 FET FET FET FET 8T
(no(e 28) (no(e 30) (no‘te) (Restated)
(KizE28) (Krit30) (Hiit) (A5 E7))
As at 1 April 2022 K2022F 4818 7,500 35,242 (693) 20,489 (1,168) 11,580 72,950
Purchase of shares RIBAR D BN 2R A
for the Share Award i n
Scheme = = (60) = = = (60)
Transaction with owners — BEi#EA AETHR S - - (60) - - - (60)
Loss for the year FREREGEED])
(Restated) - - - - - (2,170) (2,170)
Other comprehensive FREMEERZ -
expense for the year:
Exchange difference %Wl\l%"%}xiﬁ']
arising on translation fE =%
of a foreign operation - - - - (638) - (638)
Actuarial gains on long ~ REIRBH S EENEE
service payment Wz (KisE27)
obligations (note 27) (L&)
(Restated) - - - - - 114 114
Total comprehensive FRE2EMAXEE
expense for the year (&i’ﬂ)
(Restated) - - - (638)  (2,056) (2,694)
As at 31 March 2023 R20234%3 A31H
(Restated) and 1 April (K E7)) ]k 2023 F
2023 481H 7,500 35,242 (753) 20,489 (1,806) 9,524 70,196
Profit for the year F i F - - - - - 1,592 1,592
Other comprehensive FAAMEERHT -
expense for the year:
Exchange difference BENERBE LR
arising on translation fERERE
of a foreign operation - - - - (933) - (933)
Actuarial gains on long  RERBSEENEE
service payment Yezs (P&t 27)
obligations (note 27) - - - - - 69 69
Total comprehensive FRZERALSE
income for the year - - - - (933) 1,661 728
As at 31 March 2024 R 20243 531K 7,500 35,242 (753) 20,489 (2,739) 11,185 70,924
* The reserves accounts comprise the Group’'s reserves of * ZEFEREERKEERGS WK P B F
HK$63,424,000 (2023 (Restated): HK$62,696,000) in the consolidated 1%563,424,0008 7T (2023 F (4L &%) : 62,696,000
statement of financial position. ABIL) °
Note: Other reserve represents the difference between paid-in capital and i - HfefEmRRBEEEE 2 A AR RPN ERE %

issued share capital of the Company arising from group reorganisation.

TRAZEzER »
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERITRER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

2024 2023
2024 2023 fF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kt FET FEL
(Restated)
(&&E7))
Cash flows from operating RETBMELENRERE
activities
Profit/(Loss) before income tax B AR, (&) 1,852 (2,911)
Adjustments for: KR
Depreciation on property, plant and %% - BERERHEITE
equipment 14 9,429 9,339
Write-down of inventories to net 1517 & MR &= A 23R F (B
realisable value 18 152 430
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for & 5 W IBTE (= & &8
expected credit losses (“ECL”) (Bml) /B
allowance for trade receivables 19 (2) i
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial EAFEFTABZNEEE
assets at FVTPL, net ENAFEREE (=)
YEEE 7 26 (2,098)
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERAFEFAEBRENE
at FVTPL BE E R EE 7 583 2,040
Net loss on written-off of property, MEEME - BE KRE&GE
plant and equipment FEE 7 - 31
Covid-19 related rent concessions B 42019 # AR iR m SR A8
received ARSI R 9 - (176)
Interest expenses B 8 1,249 1,219
Interest and dividend income F 2 R AR B A (195) (572)
Share of losses of associates FEMLE & QR 2 BB 102 197
Unrealised foreign exchange AEBRERFE
realignment (866) (591)
Expenses recognised in profit or RERGEEEERPE
loss for long service payment REE R
obligations 27 259 334
Operating cash flows before working “E&ESZFHRELEE
capital changes mE 12,589 7,253
Decrease in financial assets at BEAFEFTABZHNESR
FVTPL BERD 613 1,018
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories HFEGEM), R (4,058) 220
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B 5 Rk H b fE YR IE
other receivables B, (3ghn) 610 (887)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and B REMEMNTIE
other payables Om ), /# (24) 349
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEN 980 507
(Decrease)/Increase in refund RRBECRD) Em
liabilities (19) 75
Net cash generated from operating ST B E AR SRR
activities 10,691 8,535

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 F

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hat FHET FAET
(Restated)
(E51)
Cash flows from investing BRETHRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEMZE  BEKEHE
equipment 14 (21) (1,159)
Redemption of financial asset at BER AT ES ABE
FVTPL SREE - 5,000
Investment in an associate & & — A HE & A A 25 - (3,900)
Interest and dividend received BF B RS 195 572
Net cash generated from investing KREEHEENRS FHE
activities 174 518
Cash flows from financing AMETBRERE
activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITHR KRB RIE 33 - 6,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIBITER 33 (6,057) (5,439)
Purchase of shares for the Share R IR AR AD 2B &t 2
Award Scheme ARG 30 - (60)
Repayment of amount due to {812 JE (TR R AR SR 308
controlling shareholder 88} (5,000) -
Payment of lease liabilities HEBENNK 33 (7,990) (8,198)
Interests paid BEfFIE 8 (1,249) (1,219)
Net cash used in financing activities ®IE RENFTRHAIR & /F5E (20,296) (8,916)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRESEBYWORD)
and cash equivalents B h0F (9,431) 132
Cash and cash equivalents at the FNHRe LR EBY
beginning of the year 20,657 20,572
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNETE R F B8
changes (67) (47)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRASRHASEEY
the end of the year 20 11,159 20,657
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a
public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
the registered office of the Company is PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands and the
principal place of business of the Company is at No. 6-13
Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company is Mythe Group Holdings Company
Limited (“Mythe”) which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Fu Chun
Keung (“Mr. Fu”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 24 June 2024.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

B 5 ¥ R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

2.1

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for

annual periods beginning on 1 April 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new and amended HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on
1 April 2023:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and
related amendments
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Policies

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction
Amendments to International Tax Reform — Pillar
HKAS 12 Two Model Rules

The adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs had no
material impact on how the results and financial position
for the current and prior periods have been prepared
and presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain amended HKFRSs have
been published but are not yet effective, and have not

been adopted early by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of

10 and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Leaseback'
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements'

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”’) — continued

2.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs — continued

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025

Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for
the first period beginning on or after the effective date
of the pronouncement. The amended HKFRSs are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

B 5 ¥ 3R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.3

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implication
of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism

As disclosed in note 27 to consolidated financial
statements, in June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR
Government (the “Government”) gazetted the Hong
Kong Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”), which will take effect
on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). The Amendment
Ordinance abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions
to offset LSP in respect of an employee’s service from
the Transition Date (the “Abolition”). In addition, the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition
Date is used to calculate the portion of the LSP in
respect of the employment period before the Transition
Date.

Prior to 1 April 2023, the Group applied practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 (the “Practical
Expedient”) to account for the offsetable MPF benefits
as deemed employee contributions to reduce the
current service costs in the period in which the related

services were rendered.

In July 20283, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” (the “Guidance”) that
provides guidance for the accounting for the offsetting
mechanism and the impact arising from the abolition of
the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

B 5 ¥ R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.3

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implication
of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism

— continued

By following the Guidance, the Group has changed its
accounting policy in connection with its LSP obligations.
As a result of the Abolition, these contributions are
no longer considered “linked solely to the employee’s
service in that period” since the employer’'s mandatory
MPF contribution after the Transition Date can still
be used to offset the pre-transition LSP obligation.
Therefore, the Group ceased to apply the Practical
Expedient and reattribute the deemed employee
contributions to periods of service in the same manner
as the gross LSP benefit by applying paragraph 93(a)
of HKAS 19. This change in accounting policy upon
the cessation in applying the Practical Expedient has
resulted in a catch-up adjustment in profit or loss in
June 2022 for the service cost up to that date and
consequential impacts on current service cost, interest
expense and remeasurement effects from changes in
actuarial assumptions for the rest of 2022/2023 (see
note 27), with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the LSP obligations during the year
ended 31 March 2023. This change in accounting
policy did not have any impact on the opening balance
of equity as at 1 April 2022. The Group has assessed
the implications of this new Guidance on the above
accounting policy and the Guidance has a material
impact on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared or

presented in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG 2. BHEMFITIRKBITEBMEBEREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ([ FBMERELER ) — &
(“HKFRSs”) — continued
2.3 New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implication 23 FERHFHMELABS((AREBLHEER

of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long HRESH TS HENTE
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism BETMARES — &

— continued

This change in accounting policy has been applied ZIBe:AREEHEBFR/EYN 2023 F 3
retrospectively by restating the balances as at 31 March A 31 BRASKRETEAMER - TREMER
2023. The following table summarises the impacts of MiESI Y REBGAEBER NEMEEIER
the adoption of the Guidance on the comparatives RURGEP AR KT 2T & T
presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of )70

profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of financial position.

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 2023 £ 3 F 31 A% & BB TE
March 2023
Restated
carrying
Carrying amount as at
amount as at 31 March
31 March 2023 Impact of 2023
(before the adoption of (after the
adoption) the Guidance adoption)
#2023 F
2023 F 3A31 AW
3H31 K KEFIREE
FREEGRMAT) RWESINFE (FR#n12)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT TFET
Deferred tax assets BRI IBE EE 5,733 55 5,788
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b e FUE 6,491 (296) 6,195
LSP obligations RERIE S B - 516 516
Retained profits R B8 s Al 9,689 (165) 9,524

118 CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

2.3 New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implication
of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism

— continued

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2023

2. BR#

A REETERMBRESE

AI(TERMBREEA]) — &

2.3

Original amount
(before the

FRREMEABE(RES NER
MRBEHARESTRENTE
BERAAEES — &

B F2023E3 531 I FEHHS
B RAMDE K= %

Impact of Restated

adoption of amount (after

adoption)  the Guidance the adoption)
[R& % KEY &5
(FR@AT) RSN E (FRan12)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET T TFET
Selling and distribution costs HE R KA 19,781 379 20,160
General and administrative —RRATERA X
expenses 15,867 (45) 15,822
Income tax credit Frisfi e 686 55 741
Loss for the year FAEE 1,891 279 2,170
Actuarial gains on LSP REREEENREE
obligations & = 114 114
Other comprehensive expense  Ht2EM % 638 (114) 524
Total comprehensive expense 2 ERE X 4% 2,529 165 2,694
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BN SR B (PR L)
(note) (P &) (2.52) (0.37) (2.89)

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
and basic and diluted loss per share were adjusted after
taking into account the effect of the share consolidation
in May 2024 (note 10).

MiEE - B 21T 8RR (DI04 F 15 B
R 5 AR E AR T 4858 165 18 12 & 182024
F5ARMEHRTERETT AR
(FF5E10) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG 2. EMHITRKEBITIEBUMBREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A(TEAHMEREEL ) — &
(“HKFRSs”) — continued
2.3 New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implication 23 FERHFHMELABS((AREBLHEER

of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long HRESH TS ST HENTE
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism BETMARES — &
— continued
The following table summarises the impacts of the TERBAFENESIHAERHZE
adoption of the Guidance on the Group’s consolidated 20243 A31 B IEFEMHZEER
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive REMmEEmW R RN 2024F3 A
income for the year ended 31 March 2024 and S1AMGETBRAROTE - Al
consolidated statement of financial position as at RRAEAREBATR ElSTHBER
31 March 2024, if the Group had not changed its WHEERBESSTEAE195E
accounting policy as noted above and had continued 93(b) B M BT & i -
to apply the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of
HKAS 19:
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 2024 £ 3 A 31 AB4E B Bt K ZE
March 2024
Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as
31 March 2024 Impact of at 31 March
(before the adoption of 2024 (after the
adoption) the Guidance adoption)
2024 F 7" 2024 F
3H31HMH 3H31HMH
REE(FRMHAT) RABSINEE REERRR)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FAET FAET
Deferred tax assets EETIBE B 5,430 98 5,528
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E M ENFRIE 6,467 (296) 6,171
LSP obligations RHRESEE - 706 706
Retained profits RE & A 11,497 (312) 11,185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG 2. BHEMFIIRKBITEAMBEREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A EHEMBTHREED]) — Z&
(“HKFRSs”’) — continued
2.3 New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implication 23 FERFHELABS((ARABLHEER

of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long HRESH TS ST HENTE
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism BETMARES — &

— continued

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other B FE2024 3531 I FEHHS
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March B REMEH K7

2024

Impact of
Amount before adoption of Amount after

the adoption the Guidance the adoption
SH(RHA) RAESINRE SH(RMNRE)

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FETT FET

Selling and distribution costs $HE K 5 SR 20,167 199 20,366

General and administrative —RRRATHRA X

expenses 15,744 60 15,804

Income tax expense IS 303 (43) 260

Profit for the year F A F 1,808 (216) 1,592
Actuarial gains on LSP RERBSEEN

obligations EE - 69 69

Other comprehensive expense  Eth &Mk 2 933 (69) 864

Total comprehensive income EHENZREE 875 (147) 728
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation and presentation

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”).

The material accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new and
amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed

in note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
assets at FVTPL (see note 3.6) that are measured
at fair values at the end of the reporting period.
The measurement bases are fully described in the

accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgment of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the

Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of
intra-group asset are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting

policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.2

Basis of consolidation — continued

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the

subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.3

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.

In consolidated financial statements, investments
in associates are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed
for impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable

to the investment.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate
for the year, including any impairment loss on the

investment in associate recognised for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.3

Associates — continued

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Where unrealised
losses on assets sales between the Group and its
associate are reversed on equity accounting, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from
the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by

the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in associates equal or
exceed its interests in the associates, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s other
long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate, after applying
the ECL model to such other long-term interests where

applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.3

Associates — continued

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associate. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group determines whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between
the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate and its
carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate, including cash flows arising
from the operations of the associate and the proceeds

on ultimate disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from
the date when it ceases to have significant influence
over an associate. The difference between (i) the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate; and (ii) the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity
method was discontinued, is recognised in the profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.4

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the end of the reporting period retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit

or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange

rates at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expenses have
been converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 3.16), if any. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment (other than right-
of-use assets) comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use. The cost of right-
of-use assets are determined in accordance with note
3.11.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term
or 25% per annum,

whichever is the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 30%

Machinery 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Accounting policy for depreciation of right-of-use assets

is set out in note 3.11.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 3. EASHEEBE — 2
POLICIES — continued
3.6 Financial instruments 3.6 S@ITA
Recognition and derecognition EARARILTER

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,

cancelled or expires.
Financial assets
Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”),
all financial assets are initially measured at fair value, in
case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified into amortised cost or
FVTPL.

The classification is determined by both:

— the entity’s business model for managing the

financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs, general and administrative expenses,

other income or other (losses)/gains, net.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

B 5 ¥ R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect

its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in “other income”
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect

of discounting is immaterial.

The Group’s bank balances and cash and trade and
other receivables fall into this category of financial

instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

B 5 ¥ 3R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Subsequent measurement of financial assets —

continued
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Dividends from
investments in equity securities are recognised in profit

or loss as “other income”.
Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group'’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings,
lease liabilities, trade and other payables and amount
due to controlling shareholder. They are separately
shown on the face of the consolidated statement of

financial position.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable,
adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a financial liability at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities — continued

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities —

continued

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method except for derivatives which
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships and financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with

gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes
in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or

loss are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note
3.11.

Bank borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.

Trade and other payables and amount due to controlling

shareholder

They are recognised initially at their fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R EwRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES — continued

3.7 Impairment of financial assets

The impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) use forward-looking
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other

debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost

and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the

current conditions at the end of the reporting period as

well as the forecast of future conditions.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction

is made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial

recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”);

and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial

recognition and whose credit risk is not low

(“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have

objective evidence of impairment at the end of the

reporting period.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category

while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2

category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-

weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life

of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at the end of each
reporting period. These are the expected shortfalls in
contractual cash flows, considering the potential for
default at any point during the life of the financial assets.
In calculating the ECL, the Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience and external indicators, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been

grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s

trade receivables are assessed as a separate

group);
. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increase in
the likelihood of risk of default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
assets at the end of the reporting period with the risk of
default occurring on the financial assets at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’'s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
end of each reporting period. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally

understood definition.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when there is a
breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
when (i) information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by the

Group) or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at

amortised cost are set out in note 37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.8

3.9

3.10

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average method for gold jewellery products and specific
identification basis for other jewellery products. Net
realisable values represent the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion

and costs necessary to make the sale.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.11 Leases

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
“a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right
to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration”. To apply
this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract

meets three key evaluations which are whether:

. the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time

the asset is made available to the Group;

o the Group has the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract;

and

. the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease component on the basis of

their relative stand-alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.11 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The right-
of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of
the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in
advance of the lease commencement date (net of any

lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-

use asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”).

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or
rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a

residual value guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.11 Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any lease modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expense in profit or loss in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of modification. The
only exception is any rent concessions which arose as
a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic and
which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change

in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit
or loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to

zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of

12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

B 5 ¥ 3R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.11

3.12

Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in “property,

plant and equipment”.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included

in the cost of right-of-use assets.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of

the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fale)

B 5 ¥ R MY RE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.13

3.14

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity attributable
to the equity holders. The amount of the share capital
recognised is determinated using the nominal value and
any related transaction costs are deducted from the

share premium.
Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of jewellery

products.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group

follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

8. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance

obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or

services to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R EwRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES — continued

3.14 Revenue recognition — continued

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances

an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the

Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time

when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

or service.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

Sales of jewellery products and recycled gold

products

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
jewellery products and recycled gold products are

delivered to the customers and the respective control

has been passed.

Provision of jewelcrafting services

The revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

jewelcrafting services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I 75 8 & MY &

RE R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.14

3.15

Revenue recognition — continued
Refund liabilities

The Group would estimate the sales return at the time
of sale at a portfolio level (expected value method)
based on its historical experience and recognise a
refund liability if the Group expects to refund some or
all of the consideration received from customers. When
customers exercise their right to recover the product,
the Group recognised “right of return assets” included
in “trade and other receivables” and a corresponding

adjustment to cost of goods sold.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying

amount of the asset.
Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented
in gross under “other income” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.16 Impairment on non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets), interests in associates and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are subject to impairment

testing.

All assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be

recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of

time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.16

Impairment on non-financial assets — continued

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units
is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating
units, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of

disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss

had been recognised.
Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. In addition, the employees
employed under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
are also entitled to LSP if the eligibility criteria are met.

The LSP is a defined benefit plan.
Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan under the MPF Schemes Ordinance, for all
of its employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme, and the state-managed retirement benefit
scheme in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the

employees’ basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the

fixed percentage contributions payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R EwRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES — continued
3.17 Employee benefits — continued

Defined benefit plan

The amount of long service benefit that an employee
will receive on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances is defined by reference to the employee’s
length of service and corresponding salary. The legal

obligations for any benefits remain with the Group.

The LSP obligations recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position is the present value of the
LSP obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Management estimates the LSP obligations annually.
This is based on the discount rate, the salary growth
rate, turnover rate and the expected investment return
on offsetable MPF accrued benefits. Discount factors
are determined close to the end of each annual
reporting period by reference to high quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid and have terms to maturity

approximating the terms of the related defined benefit

liability.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

- service cost (including current and past service

cost, and gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);
- net interest expense or income; and

- remeasurement.

Service cost on the Group’s defined benefit plan is
included in employee benefits expenses. Employee
contributions, all of which are independent of the

number of years of service, are treated as a reduction of

service cost.

Net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability

is included in employee benefits expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.17 Employee benefits — continued

Defined benefit plan — continued

Gains and losses resulting from remeasurements of the
net defined benefit liability, comprising actuarial gains
and losses, are included in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRSs require or permit the

inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries) after deducting

any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I 75 8, & MY &

RE R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.18

3.19

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.
Taxation
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a

component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused tax
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits

can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.19 Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss and does not give rise to equal

taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
the requirements in HKAS 12 to the lease liabilities and
the related assets separately. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to the lease liabilities to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for

all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income

or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.19 Taxation — continued

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(a)

(b)

the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;

and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:
(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 3. EXSFERBE —#&
POLICIES— continued
3.20 Related parties 3.20 @A
For the purposes of these consolidated financial MREGAYERRMS  HFE
statements, a party is considered to be related to the IATER M TATEHKEHER
Group if: SE AR
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (a) MHRFEATER - Bz ATk
person’s family and if that person: ZATHIEHREREEEH
Bt
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i) sk EEERARE
F
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBEEATE
75k
(iii) is a member of the key management (i) AAEEXAEEFR
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the AINEZERERKS -
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R EwRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES — continued

3.20 Related parties — continued

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group.

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities,

are described below.
Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable values of inventories are based on
estimated selling prices less any estimation costs to be
incurred for completion and disposal. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical

experience in selling goods of similar nature.

The Group’s management reviewed, on a regular basis, the
suitability of its inventory provision policy and has applied the
policy consistently. The Group’s management also reviewed,
on a regular basis, the inventory ageing list to identify
any slow-moving inventories and estimated the amount of
provision primarily based on the pricing policy and strategies
and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. The Group also engaged an independent professional
gemologist to perform valuation and assess the conditions of
certain items based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery
products with reference to international diamond prices, its

expertise and the current market situation.
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{E AT HARR] B R R EATR] RERR o

T R ERRBRAARREERR Rfba
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued
Valuation of inventories — continued

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$62,890,000, net of provision for inventories of
HK$4,413,000 (2023: HK$58,984,000, net of provision for
inventories of HK$4,261,000) (note 18).

Leases — Estimation of IBR

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, therefore, it uses its IBR to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables
within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL
(including trade and other receivables) based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as set
out in note 3.7. As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of
trade and other receivables within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9 amounted to HK$4,965,000, net of ECL allowance
of HK$30,000 (2023: HK$5,203,000, net of ECL allowance of
HK$32,000).

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9 and
credit losses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

EFFTREMNETERR — &

FEfhE — &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

(including right-of-use assets)

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying amount of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the assets belong. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount rate or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially

affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

HFFTREMNETERR — &

M¥E - BERREBUAREAEEENMG
AR

M BERREABECAEEE)R
AR R T E RBE(E )R - RE
EEEETRER - AERBZAEDHE &
fhet - CHREFNE: (WRERFHER
ERGEAERAEZEEEEE: 2)&
EREER T B HA T 4 B & 58 (20 2 5
EBE)XF - MRBRHEEHEEMRTNR
RESMENFRE : & (3) BRANMLET
AREEENEZRRER(ERATRE
BREEMRERE) - EEAGHERNE
EREREREEE)NAKEERR - A
SEGHEEMBREEABUNAKE
8 - BREEFH(BEASRER T
BRI R YIR R ) BB A] g R DRI PR A
FREENEATE -

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT £ 3R

157



158

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

(including right-of-use assets) — continued

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) was HK$13,530,000
(2023: HK$15,934,000) (note 14). No impairment loss has been
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) (2023: Nil) at the end of the reporting period.

Estimation of LSP obligations

Management’s estimate of the LSP obligations is based
on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as
the discount rate, the salary growth rate, turnover rate and
the expected investment return on offsetable MPF accrued
benefits. Variation in these assumptions may significantly
impact the amounts of LSP obligations and annual defined

benefit expenses.

Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying

amount of LSP obligations.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of LSP obligations
was HK$706,000 (2023 (Restated): HK$516,000). Details
of key assumptions and impact of possible changes in key

assumptions are disclosed in note 27.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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A MR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued
Income tax and deferred taxation

As detailed in note 12, the Group is subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax. Significant judgment is required in determining
the amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the period in which such estimate is changed. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets was HK$5,528,000 (2023 (Restated): HK$5,788,000)
(note 17).
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents amounts received and receivable for the
sales of jewellery products and recycled gold products, and

provision of jewelcrafting services during the year.

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, regularly review revenue analysis
by nature of business (including jewellery business and
trading of recycled gold products), and by jewellery
products (including gem-set jewellery products (representing
diamond/karat gold/jade/pearl/platinum jewellery products
and provision of jewelcrafting services) and gold jewellery
products). The executive directors of the Company
considered the operating activities of sales of these products
as a single operating segment. The operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform to
HKFRSs, and is regularly reviewed by the executive directors
of the Company. The executive directors of the Company
review the overall results, assets and liabilities of the Group
as a whole to make decisions about resources allocation.
Accordingly, no analysis of this single operating segment is

presented.
Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from contract with

customers is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

Wi K o EBE R

Yo 46 5F IR B 2 an % [0 MO < 2 m O 86
EMEHAENTIRBNE MR ERESEE -

ARARRTER(BITEZLERRE)EH
EZHREBULE (REREXBROKES
EmBZ) MEREER(BRELBRRIK
BEREER K/ BHR PR He
KREBEMMURENTRB) AR ESKEE
) Bl D RS DT - ARRAITEFHZ
EOMEREEEEVBREEN NS
RMHARERREOEEFZR - Wi
ARBAITEEERNERN - ARFANTE
EERMAAEEER ENEBEBEE BER
BEMEHEBERDEHIRE - At -

BEE2IZE—RED AN

\yal

EERESR
AEBEFEHRADTAT

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 &

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Jewellery business: RE L -
- Retail operation of jewellery shops - REETEER 95,662 103,793
— Wholesales of jewellery products - REELBLE 12,188 11,314
107,850 115,107
Trading of recycled gold products BlEEEMES 34,424 21,715
Total Bt 142,274 136,822

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION — 5. WaRIHER — &

continued

Entity-wide information — continued

mEMER — &

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET

Jewellery business by product: RERIIDKEER
- Gem-set jewellery products - BERAEBRRBED 55,456 60,609
- Gold jewellery products - EBAUREER 52,394 54,498
107,850 115,107
Trading of recycled gold products EEEERE S 34,424 21,715
Total 1Er 142,274 136,822

The Group is engaged in the retail of its own products
through its retail stores in Hong Kong. Wholesales of jewellery
products represent sales to jewellery retailers with stores and
provision of jewelcrafting services to the wholesalers. The
Group also purchase recycled gold products from the general
public for sale to gold product collectors and dealers for
trading purpose.

Revenue from sales of jewellery products is recognised at a
point in time when the jewellery products and recycled gold
products are delivered to the customers and the respective
controls has been passed. When the Group receives a deposit
for jewellery order or contribution to customer reward scheme,
this will give rise to contract liability at the inception of a
contract, until the revenue is recognised.

Revenue from provision of jewelcrafting services is recognised
at a point in time when the jewelcrafting services are

rendered.

No individual customer contributing revenue which accounted
for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue during both

years.

AEBERBERBENTEENEEDS
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TERMHE AL EEIBEHIRE MR
%o ARETA-—RAVBEODRESE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION —

continued
Entity-wide information — continued

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers have
a right to exchange/refund within a year. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the exchange/
refund rate. A refund liability is recognised when the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration received
from customers. The Group’s right to recover the product is
recognised as a right of return assets included in “trade and
other receivables” and a corresponding adjustment to cost of
goods sold.

All sales contracts have an original expected duration of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction

price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
generated in Hong Kong. An analysis of the Group’s non-
current assets including property, plant and equipment and
interests in associates by their physical geographical location

is as follows:

Non-current assets:

FRBEE :
- Hong Kong - BB

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

R o HER — &

mEMER — &

REAKENRES QKRR  TERPEER
—FRERBR SRR AEEEREBER
BHERETRE JRRX - EAEER
HRERDAEHELRER - AISHER
RRBE o ANEE U B E m o R R
REEREEBRERIE S K H Mt UK
B WHREREEEEMmKAR

i 4415 & 4080 R 55 TR BRI 25 — 4 S
Py BINIR IR B T 9 A AU 15 5
B - BB S RERERAOHRS
1R -

A58 B 5 S0 ED R P M M 2 2
B AREEAERBECESH M0
RBEE(REME WS R R
AR Z M)W -

2024 2023
2024 & 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
30,852 33,358

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

6.

OTHER INCOME 6. HfWA
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITH B WA 136 90

Dividend income from financial assets ZATEFABZNESREE

at FVTPL OSSN N 59 482
Government grants (note) BT Bh (A7 i) 432 1,668
Sundry income HEIFUT A 61 56
688 2,296

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group received

cash subsidies of HK$432,000 (2023: HK$80,000) from the PRC
government in respect of its operating activities.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised
government grants in relation to the funding support received
amounted to HK$1,241,000 and HK$347,000 from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund and
the Technology Voucher Programme under the Innovation and
Technology Fund, both set up by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, respectively. No such
government grant received during the year ended 31 March
2024.

The purpose of the Employment Support Scheme was to provide
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees who
would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the
grant, the Group was required not to make redundancies during
the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying
wages to the employees. The Technology Voucher Programme
aims to promote the effective use of technological services and
solutions by the small and medium enterprises to enhance their
operational efficiency.

There were neither unfulfilled conditions nor other contingencies
attached to the receipt of those grants. In addition, there is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive such grant in
the future.

Kiet - BE2024F3A31HILE AEEESHEH

B A R B LS BB IR ENRE A8
% F /432,000 7T(2023 4 : 80,000 %
JT) °

REBRBE202343 A31 HILFERER
BT B - 2 HEBhA R BB R BITT R K
FERESL 2 BB R £ & (Rt At 8 R BIF R
PHEE S BHRZ FTEIMKmKE S &R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7. Hth(EE) WEFE
2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT F&T
Net foreign exchange gain P& 5 W s B 58 111 60
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial EAFEFABSENERMEEN
assets at FVTPL, net AFE(ER), W F5E (26) 2,098
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERAFAEFABREN SR
at FVTPL B EREIE (583) (2,040)
Net loss on written off of property, MEEME - BE K& EFEE
plant and equipment - (31)
(498) 87
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBHA
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITRERFE 959 775
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEABNOREER 290 444
1,249 1,219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BKRBIADEF,(EE)

BB AT A, (B 18) T (GEA) T

Profit/(Loss) before income tax has been arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

SR IRIRIER

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(=5])
Lease charges: HEMRX
— Short-term leases - Mg 519 442
- Covid-19 related rent concessions received - Bl 2019 A B M A B R
(note a) HAEE R Hta) - (176)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M¥  BERRENTE
(note 14) (Hiat14)
- Owned assets - BEEE 1,206 1,179
- Right-of-use assets - FREEE 8,223 8,160
Total depreciation of property, plant and M¥  BERRENTELRRE
equipment 9,429 9,339
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BERRENTE
(note 14) (HizE 14)
- Recognised as selling and distribution costs - BRRBEE RS HEAR 7,285 7,260
- Recognised as general and administrative - BRRB—RRITHAX
expenses 2,144 2,079
Total depreciation of property, plant and W BERSENTELSE
equipment 9,429 9,339
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) BEMe iz 1)
- Fees - 4,034 3,958
- Retirement benefit scheme contributions - RIREFIF B3R 152 150
4,186 4,108
Other staff's salaries and other benefits Hitn 8 THe kEmEF
- Recognised as cost of goods sold - BRBEEHERA 693 714
- Recognised as selling and distribution costs - BRBHE R HEA 9,939 9,793
- Recognised as general and administrative - BRA—MRRITHAL
expenses 4,063 4,190
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme Hfh 8 TRIREFIFH IR
contributions
- Recognised as cost of goods sold - ERAEERMEA 178 183
- Recognised as selling and distribution costs - BREHEERDHEKA 451 441
- Recognised as general and administrative - BRB—RRITHAX
expenses 319 320
Expenses arising from LSP obligations RERBEEFEENIL 259 334
Total staff costs B IR AR5 20,088 20,083
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for ECL allowance & 5 ENFIERTEHREEEE
for trade receivables (note 19) (BE) /BeAB(H1aE 19) (2) 1
Auditor’s remuneration 2GR 520 500
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BR AR HFEERA 97,518 99,123
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value BEEMRE SR E (M ZDb)
(note b) 152 430
Net loss on written off of property, plant and WMEDE  BERREFER
equipment - 31
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX — 9. BFANER (FE) — ~&
continued

Notes: et -

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the rent concessions (a) HBE202343A31HLEEE  ALERA
received by the Group are in the form of a discount on fixed W5 1L 2019 37 BY 7 iR 78 25 fm 154 T £R B 4O &R
payments during the period of severe social distancing and 84 22 BE B K iR 202 PR 45 1t A RIS O &
travel restriction measures introduced to prevent the spread of B5R 23 B TE (Y SR o L= 2024 F 3 A 31
Covid-19. No rent concession received during the year ended ALEFELEESHRAZASRE -

31 March 2024.

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recognised (b) B Z=E202443H31HILFE - #MHTE
write-down of inventories to net realisable value of certain BE T HK AR #3758 152,0008 7T
finished goods of HK$152,000 (2023: HK$430,000) (note 18). (2023 4 : 430,000 7T ) (K &£ 18) B B8 A&

SEHER -
10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 10. BRER (&HE)

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share FIREKRREN (EE) iz T 5 &t

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the g

following data:

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
(Restated)
(gE51)
Profit/(Loss) AL (ER)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FRm A, (EE) 1,592 (2,170)
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 &
’000 ‘000
FiR FHR
(Restated)
(=51)
Number of shares BRHEEB
Weighted average number of shares  B&{p 1Nt 158
(note) (H&E) 75,000 75,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE — continued 10. BRER (FR) — &

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and MIEE : BEBITEBRIRAMRMD NEFHEIA R SRE
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share were adjusted after ARBERT (EBR)EEE2024F5 A
taking into account the effect of the share consolidation in & A BIRET T RHE - EPRAQA
May 2024 under which every ten existing shares of par value AR E1I0REREEC.01ETHRE T
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company being BREHA—REREEOABITHE HIR
consolidated into one consolidated share of par value of HK$0.1 5 (H5E40) ° LLEEE 2 RER A A 6
each in the share capital of the Company (note 40). Comparative B EFVIRRERAIE R NETEWAE -

figures have been retrospectively adjusted on the assumption
that the above share consolidation had been effective since the

beginning of the prior year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic H Z=0024F K 202343831 B ILERE -
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no potential dilutive A 4 O BT B S m AT - S
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 March SERAERN(FE)BeREREF /(5
2024 and 2023. 18) R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # £ 20244 3 531 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the
executive directors, chief executive and independent
non-executive directors of the Company, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

BEE  BSTHRAERESEHMH

(a)

ESRRETHRASHMH

RELETRA - BAQRGE
BN IFEM( AR EEEFHNEE
FORGIDFE 2 SR ENE N HENA
AR TEERERITRABRAR
REBUIFFAITEFTOFH B
T~

Retirement

Salaries benefit

and other scheme

benefits contributions

MR BB
Hin Al b JEE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2024 HZF2024F3831H
LEE:
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) BEAE(TTHES) 3,025 - 120 3,145
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLZLT 328 - 16 344
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk* REELLT* 321 - 16 337
3,674 - 152 3,826
Independent non-executive BUFRTES :
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REERTAE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick — Ek#& %4 120 - - 120
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRFBEEE 120 - - 120
360 - - 360
4,034 - 152 4,186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

11.

(a)

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 1. EE  BESTBRAEBRESFH —
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued =z
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments — (a) EZERBETHRASHMH — &
continued
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees other benefits  contributions Total
& RIREH
BH L {42 7 SRR FER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2023 EE2023F3A31H
HEFE -
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) BrE(TRER) 3,000 - 120 3,120
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BEBRLL 323 - 15 338
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk* REELL® 293 - 15 308
3,616 - 150 3,766
Independent non-executive BUFRITES :
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REZERE 114 - - 114
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick k354 114 - - 114
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRTHTE 114 - - 114
342 - - 342
3,958 - 150 4,108

* Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk is the spouse of Mr. Fu.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company. There were no bonuses paid or payable
to directors which are discretionary or are based on
the Group’s or Company’s performance for the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023. No remuneration was
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years. There is
no arrangement under which a director has waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration.

* REERLAEEENLE -

ENFTRHTESTMFMEE AR
NEI R AEE K E R EHIREN R
HEBE - EXRBLIERTES
MHEMNEE SRR RRENRBEE
B8 o B 2024 F F20234F 3 A 31
BIEFE SESTEAMBHR
N SE NG E SR N i )
MEMEZES - RREFE  ~N&EE
WM AR A EE N FHERR
S| h0 A 7S &8 B 5 A0 A 7S £ [ R A B2
BSEABEREE HMEEHEES
WEXREREEMEM 2L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 1. EE  BESTBRABRESFH —
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued F =1
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) EEBRSHFHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group include REE2024F3A31BILFEMNR
one (2023: one) director of the Company for the year EEmTNEEBREARTMN1IBE
ended 31 March 2024, details of emoluments are E(2023F : 18) " HEFMFBHR
included above. The emoluments of the remaining four M EX - H824% (20234 : 48) &%
(2023: four) highest paid employees who are neither =EMES (BEIEARREZEE IR
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as SITEA B )N T -
follows:
2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Employees BB
— Salaries and other benefits — ¥ Kfmih 1,661 1,314
— Discretionary bonus — BIBIELL 731 799
— Retirement benefit scheme — RRAERIET IR
contributions 72 71
2,464 2,184
The emoluments of these remaining four highest paid RAFE  AEEZEERIERS
individuals in the Group for the year were within the HEEAN G NESE T -
following band:
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Number of Number of
employee employee
EE®A EE%E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ 1,000,000 7T 4 4
Certain employees of the Group are entitled to bonus AREBETREERERNIELL B
payments which are determined based on a percentage RATE AT & 5B 1% 5% ) 8 4 2 A A8 8 Bt
of the profit before income tax of the relevant B2 B eBR A AR A K E B 5
subsidiaries during both years. E °
There were no amounts paid by the Group to any of the AEBTERAZEETMNEE X
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or T EE &R S| AN AZK & B A sk i A
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of AEBRNEESIESBBEE
office (2023: Nil). (20234 : &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. FiE%iEx(ER)
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
(Restated)
(&=5)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBAFH
— Current year — AFE - -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") Rl EATSR (TG ])
— Current year — AFE - -
Deferred tax (note 17) EERB (KL 17) 260 (741)
Income tax expense/(credit) EHEY(ER) 260 (741)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had available tax losses brought forward from prior
years to offset the assessable profit generated during the
year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: No Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been provided for the year ended 31 March 2023 as the
Group did not derive any assessable profit arising in Hong
Kong).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiary in the PRC is
25% for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

MR AREB B LRI FE &8 e 0] AR IEE
BNIEEE E2024F3 A31H L FEE
ERERTEF - MU ERBBFEHE
M5 (2023 6 : HRBEIE 20236 F3 A
31 AL FEREENWENEBE EEME
FBE A B EEHREE S FEBEE) -

RIER B EMEFEURBEMSHE
BHEIRB - B E 2024 4 % 2023 € 3 A 31
Bt FEHRBEKEARNFEE25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) — continued 12. FiEHilx(ER) — &
The tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) FRA LG EBEE M EM 2 W SR ER
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or WATEA (EB) SRR IEN T -
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
(Restated)
(&&:5)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BB A=, (E51E) 1,852 (2,911)
Tax charge at the applicable income  1%iE A PTIS TR 16.5% =1k
tax rate at 16.5% KB IR 306 (480)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT X M TE 2
for tax purpose 113 1183
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEARRIBANTRIEHE
tax purpose (79) (343)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REMEATIBBEMBBZE 2 2
Effect of different tax rate applicable R E#h A AR R 4 L B A &
to a subsidiary operating in the BRAN TR R E
other jurisdiction (99) (65)
Others Hh 17 32
Income tax expense/(credit) FEHREY (ER) 260 (741)
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Group during N EBRNE ZE 2024 F & 2023F 3 A 31 H
the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, nor has any IEFEERE AR S BRERRS - 8%®
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period. LSHIR I AR ERPRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ BERRE

Furniture,
Right-of-use Leasehold fixtures and Motor
assets  improvements equipment vehicles Machinery Total
HENE BE EE
RRERE HRIE RERRRE RE W @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET TET AT TET
Cost A
As at 1 April 2022 w2022 4 18 43,388 7,014 4,072 898 331 55,703
Additions hE = 149 496 514 - 1,159
Modification Ea] 3,564 - - - - 3,564
Written off s = = = (44) = (44)
As at 31 March 2023 7202353 A31H R
and 1 April 2023 2023F 4814 46,952 7,163 4,568 1,368 331 60,382
Additions NE - - 21 - - 21
Modification B3] 7,004 - - - - 7,004
Written off W - - - - (40) (40)
As at 31 March 2024 R 202453 A31H 53,956 7,163 4,589 1,368 291 67,367
Accumulated ik
depreciation
As at 1 April 2022 w2022 4 A1 A 26,882 3,766 3,281 862 331 35,122
Provided for the year — FR#{E 8,160 820 321 38 - 9,339
Eliminated on written WoHEHER
off - - - (13) - (13)
As at 31 March 2023 R2023%53A31BR
and 1 April 2023 20235 4A18 35,042 4,586 3,602 887 331 44,448
Provided for the year ERERE 8,223 759 3N 106 - 9,429
Eliminated on written bl
off = = = = (40) (40)
As at 31 March 2024 202453318 43,265 5,345 3,943 993 291 53,837
Net carrying amount  REFE
As at 31 March 2024 R 202453 A31H 10,691 1,818 646 375 13,530
As at 31 March 2023 120233318 11,910 2,577 966 481 = 15,934
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # £ 20244 3 531 HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

continued

14. 9% BERRE — &

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, included in the net carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use

MR2024F 2 2023F3A31H W% - B
ENREBFEATEREEE :

assets as follows:

Carrying amount as at
31 March
RZEIAS1H
ZAREE

Depreciation for

the year ended 31 March
BEZF3ASIHLEE
ZHhE

2023

2023

2023 4 2023 F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

Retail shops TEE 8,264 10,697 7,010 6,962

Office WAE 2,427 1,218 1,213 1,198

10,691 11,910 8,223 8,160

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. REEE QAT 2%

2024 2023

2024 2023 fF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Cost of investments in associates KB &R R 2 B KA 17,800 17,800
Share of post-acquisition losses and ~ EEWEEEEREMEE

other comprehensive expense, net 2 (HIBR B A8
of dividends received (478) (376)
17,322 17,424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

Set out below are details of the associates of the Group as at

31 March 2024 and 2023:

Name of associate

BEATHB

Grand Rise Creation
Limited (“Grand Rise”)

EERREERAE
(&&=

Dia Myth Jewelry (MFY)

Co., Limited

(“Dia Myth”) (note)

EEKREERAA
(T2& (M)

Form of
business
structure

EBRRBEA

Limited liability

BRAE

Limited liability

BRAFE

Place of
incorporation
and business
AR S R
EE 3
Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

5

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group acquired 20%
equity interests in Dia Myth from Mr. Fu, the ultimate controlling

party of the Company, at a cash consideration of HK$8,900,000.

The board of directors of Dia Myth consisted of three directors,

for whom one was nominated by the Group and the Group

was able to exert significant influence over the financial and

operating activities of Dia Myth. Accordingly, Dia Myth is an

associate of the Group and its financial result was accounted for

in the consolidated financial statements of the Group using the

equity method.

The associates have a reporting date of 31 March.

15. RBE AR zm — &

LATR A& 7S 5 B B 2 A &) 1K 2024 F K 2023
FI3ASIBZHIE ESRAHEAEEH

mEBERX °
Particulars Proportion
of issued of effective
and paid interest Principal
up capital held activity
BEBTR s
BERAFE REmLA FEEK
100 shares 13% Property letting
(2023: 13%)
100 A% 13% MERE
(20234 : 13%)
10,000 shares 20% Property letting
(20283: 20%)
10,000 % 20% MERE
(20234 : 20%)
HiiF - EE2023F3 A1 BIEFE  AEEMMUR
4 1X18 8,900,000 ;LM AR R & AR LR 5
BEERBEE20%RIE - FENESE
BEINERE MAFZ—EFREERE
BN B 5 B RE S 2 B 1 B i R AR R B e
MEAZE - At - FERAEENBZEAQ
Al HUIBEEFREREZRAEBNEGES
B mBRARR ©
ZEMENR 2 MEBHARIA3IHE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # £ 20244 3 531 HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

15. REE&E QR 2 #E — &

Set out below are the summarised financial information of the

associates:

VAT 2B

Dia Myth

L8

2023

BZMBEERBE

Grand Rise
EBRIE

2023

2023 £ 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET FET FET

Current assets MEEE 10,867 10,370 12,335 11,800
Non-current assets ERBEE 66,000 66,000 75,000 75,000
Current liabilities nEaE (31,089) (31,737) (15,060) (15,619)
Net assets SRl 45,778 44,633 72,275 71,181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued 15. RBE AR zm — &
Set out below are the summarised financial information of the T AEEENR 2 HBEERBE
associates:
Dia Myth Grand Rise
&% EERIE
For the
period from
6 September
2022 (date of
acquisition)
to 31 March
2023 2023
2022 F
9H6H
(KER)ZE
2023 4
2024 F EBEIRERH 2024 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
Revenue & 1,260 735 1,703 1,704
Total expenses P 4% (12) (590) (510) (490)
Profit before income tax B %5 BT A1) E 1,248 145 1,193 1,214
Income tax expense Frg iR (103) (12) (99) (101)
Profit and total FA/HRFERR
comprehensive income H #4858
for the year/period 1,145 133 1,094 1,113
Dividends received [ &S - - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued 15.

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the investments in Grand Rise and

Dia Myth is set out below:

RE&E QAR 2 BE — &

UNTRERENEEAZREENREEY
R LA B ER RO

Dia Myth Grand Rise

=%

EERIE

2023 2023

2023 % 2023 %
HK$°’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Net assets FRERTE 45,778 44,633 72,275 71,181
Ownership interests held — A&EEH A
by the Group 9,156 8,927 9,396 9,254
Elimination of leases THE (399) (147) (831) (610)
Carrying amount of & E B AN R B RRE (A
the investments in
associates 8,757 8,780 8,565 8,644

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other

commitments relating to its investments in associates.

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 16.

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong REABARN FHRERE

AEBERKERYERRDLA TAHA
BESEMAEGE o

BRAVEFABENEREE

2023

20234

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

1,844 3,066

The fair value of the Group’s listed equity investments has

been measured as described in note 37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17. BEEHRBEEE
The movements in deferred tax assets during each of the LMEHANRELETIBEEZSHWOT -
reporting period are as follows:
ECL Temporary
allowance difference
Provision for for trade on
inventories receivables  depreciation Tax losses Total
EZER
RENED wEmN
FERE FEERRR TREH REEE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T TET T BT
(Restated)
(18 &7)
As at 1 April 2022 R202246 4818 632 & 1562 4,260 5,047
Credited/(Charged) to RiBEET A/ (31K)
profit or loss (note 12)  (ffst12)
(Restated) (BEF|) 71 2 (53) 721 741
As at 31 March 2023 R 202343 A31 R
(Restated) and 1 April (B E7]) R 2023 F
2023 481H 703 5 99 4,981 5,788
Credited/(Charged) to  RiEzsEt A/ (1K)
profit or loss (note 12) (Bt 12) 25 - (6) (279) (260)
As at 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H 728 5 93 4,702 5,528

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$29,224,000 (2023 (Restated): HK$30,900,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset of
HK$4,702,000 (2023 (Restated): HK$4,981,000) has been
recognised in respect of losses of HK$28,497,000 (2023
(Restated): HK$30,188,000) as at 31 March 2024. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to the remaining
tax losses of HK$727,000 (2023: HK$712,000) as at 31 March
2024 due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The

losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

20243 A318 » "EEEABHHE
/&5 18 29,224,000 JT(2023 F (L& &= 71| ) :
30,900,000/ 7T) + Al AR 88 R 2 0a A
20243 A31H * B & 18 28,497,000
78 (2023 F (& & %1 ) : 30,188,000 7T )
ERIELEFIBEE 4,702,000/ L(2023 F
(#&EF) ¢ 4,981,000/ 78 ) ° $ 2024 F 3
R 31 B R A IEE R 727,000% 7T
(20234F : 712,000/ 7T ) ERIELEFH B E
E - REARICENTEETEA - FBETE
PR BRAEEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

18. INVENTORIES 18. BE&
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Raw materials B 7,523 8,111
Work in progress EE S 384 746
Finished goods RUAK B 54,983 50,127
62,890 58,984

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of inventories
included provision of HK$4,413,000 (2023: HK$4,261,000),
which was determined with reference to the net realisable
value of the inventory items. Additional provision of
HK$152,000 (2023: HK$430,000) was made during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

M20243H31H # E M Kk @ &
B ¥E B 54,413,000 (20237 :
4,261,000 L) AL Z7FEHEE
B Rl B IR F (B M= E o Bl £2024F
SABIBILEFER BIELBINEE
152,000 77T (2023 4F : 430,000 7T) °

19. EZRHEHMEWRIE

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Trade receivables B 5 e RIE 1,877 1,930
Less: ECL allowance i - EEEE B ERE (30) (32)
Trade receivables, net B S EWKIE(FER) 1,847 1,898
Rental deposits HEZe
- related parties (note 35(a)) - BAET (M3 35(a)) 494 494
— third parties -E£=7 1,879 1,873
Prepayments, other deposits and TEfTRIE - HfiEe R
other receivables (note) H b e WSk (A7t ) 1,252 1,806
Right of return assets REEEE 383 392
5,855 6,463
Less: non-current portion of rental B HERSRERBH S K
deposits and prepayments for M -~ BEREEN
property, plant and equipment B8 (704) (2,261)
5,151 4,202

Note: Prepayments, other deposits and other receivables mainly

Aiat - BARE - AtReREGRKREZEZEHE ()R

comprised of (i) prepayment to suppliers; (ii) money held in trust MR (i) RS EEE S P e B 845 s m = 2
for purchase of shares under Share Award Scheme; and (iii) ’r: s \:' o \‘ n .
deposits for management fee and utilities. ZBEMIES R (i) ERERARREESE

All trade and other receivables are denominated in HK$.

2B 5 R H At W FIR A TTEHE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued

The following is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables, net of ECL allowance by age, presented based

on the invoice date.

ESRHMEBEWRIE — &

TXRBEHERAHZIIREERE DA
HEEBRRERAKEE S RBUFIAF
B o

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

0 to 30 days 0ZE 30X 695 1,055
31 to 60 days 31 260X 655 438
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90K 340 174
Over 90 days B8 90 X 157 231
1,847 1,898

The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash
or through credit card payments. Trade receivables arise from
credit card sales are normally settled in one to two business
day in arrears. For the remaining customers, the Group allows
a credit period up to 90 days. A longer credit period may be
granted to large or long-established customers with good

payment history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group will internally
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customers. Management closely monitors the
credit quality and follow up actions will be taken if overdue
debts are noted. Credit limits attributed to customers and
credit term granted to customers are reviewed on a regular
basis. Approximately 92% of the trade receivables as at 31
March 2024 (2023: 88%) are neither past due nor impaired
and they were assessed to be of good credit rating by the

Group.

AEEBEFNTEHETENRENE
BERRNFET  ERTHEELENE
SRWHFIABEGRTEANE2EEX B
BB TEPME - AEBEAFEAH
REZEIOK © K& M AR R KL EA
REFRHMRTMNBTFREREERS -

REZEMIELA - NEB K PTH
BEEFHNERERTREFPREERAR
B EEERYEBRCRAERTBERR
H@ESRRREETS - SFZEH
ERAREURAZFRENEREREE
HAME 1T B 4% ° 1220244 3 531 B 4992%
(2023 : 88%) K& 5 FEULFNIB BT £ 460 HA
NERE  BUHEAEETGEARITREE
HAl o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued 19.

The movement in ECL allowance for trade receivables is as

ESRHMBEWRIE — &
BHRKREANBREEBREFENED

follows: PO
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
At the beginning of the year F1) 32 21

ECL allowance (reversed)/recognised SR (#E) TERNEHEE

during the year B iER (2) 1
At the end of the year FR 30 32

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers with reference
to the historical repayment. The Group collectively assesses
the impairment using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on share credit risk characteristics of
customers. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 March 2024 and
2023 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

EARREBEEERREEN—IHH A5
E2EER RN AERFEANISEE
FH o AEEFRAEREFHEREER
B B Y E > 4B A B 4 SR R R (B R SR S
e TRREBEEAEBIRUFIERE
BB ER  ZEERDIRE2024F &
2023 3A3IHMEEMEHREEERE
(W S ERE) BB E B T o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued

19. BEZ R EEYRK

==
— &

Gross Net
carrying Average ECL carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
EHEE

IREAE FHEsER EERE REFE
HK$’000 HK$°’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

As at 31 March 2024 A 20243 A31H
Low risk 1K 2 B 1,547 1.3% 20 1,527
Medium risk R R 330 3.0% 10 320
1,877 30 1,847

As at 31 March 2023 M 202343 A31H
Low risk S 1,486 1.3% 19 1,467
Medium risk R R 444 2.9% 13 431
1,930 32 1,898

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical

observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors

and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is

regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant

information about specific debtors is updated.

In addition, the directors of the Company considered that the

presumption of default has occurred when the instrument is

more than 90 days past due would be rebutted by considering

the expected subsequent and historical repayment from the

trade debtors.

I 1R TR R RIS A TEER 4 ER 0 B 1E
TEEENEET  LHRBANHBER
AR5 BV AT 15 6 AT I M R R
ERBTHEES M  ARREH N

TEEAKIBEEH -

SN - RAREZRR
BEHANRRERIELER > TARS

\ 4R

ZRKEES

818 90 R AIZ £ B MM A W HER) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S

20. RITEHRRE

2023
20234

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
11,159 20,657

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional

currencies of the respective group entities:

RITERRAEBETIINEREEER
WREE R ASN B ETHE R SRR ¢

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Renminbi (“‘RMB”) ARB(TARE]) 71 5

United States dollar (“US$”) Ex(lEx]) 92 80

Japanese Yen (“JPY”) Ax(l[Bxl) - 30

163 115

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EZRHEHMENRE

2024 2023

2024 2023 £

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

(Restated)

(&=7)

Trade payables B SR RIE 2,160 2,342

Accrued staff costs FEETE TR AR 2,820 2,996
Other payables and accrued charges HibENZIBR ETER

(note) (Hat) 1,191 857

6,171 6,195

Note: Other payables and accrued charges mainly comprised of (i)
accruals for audit fee; (ii) provision for annual leave; and (iii)

payables for general operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

21.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — continued

The credit period of trade payables is within 90 days (2023:
90 days) except for five (2023: two) of the major suppliers
are within 1 year. The following is an ageing analysis of the
Group’s trade payables based on the invoice date at the end

of each reporting period:

21.

ESRHMENRE — &

E 5 ENZRIER{EE R A90 H (20234 :
90H)  HRHB(2023F : MR)EZHRE
BHEEHA1FA - L FAREREH
RBBEEZAHEINAEEE HEMNFRIE
T

M RRER

2024 2023

2024 % 20234

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 30 days 0E 30X 118 945
31 to 60 days 31E60K 320 17
61 to 90 days 61£290K 14 33
Over 90 days BB 90K 1,708 1,347
2,160 2,342

Included in the Group’s trade payables are the following

amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional

currencies of the respective group entities.

AEENEZRNFEABRETIINERE
BAINNE B SHER TR

EERY

ap 15
Be &

2024 2023

2024 & 2023 4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Uss ETT 1,989 2,098
RMB AR 3 =
1,992 2,098

2023/24 ANNUAL REPORT 3k

185



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22. ANEE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Customer reward scheme (note) R SEEN T EI (A E) 5,848 4,815
Customer deposits BEFER 34 87
5,882 4,902
Note: The Group launches a customer reward scheme in its retail Hiat - REBREEBZEEHL —HEF KB
stores in Hong Kong which requires the customers to make Bl o ZETEIEREF ALK EE S FKAR
regular payments to the Group in return for redemption of the RRABAEENER °
Group’s products in the future.
As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the entire amount of contract R2024F 20233 A31H * HHEH
liabilities is expected to be realised within one year at the end BEEHEBERBNREHERE—FRE
of the reporting period. 3 e
The increase in contract liabilities as at 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31EENABEMIENES
was mainly due to the increase in payments made by the REPRI®E R RE - ZEE S8 5K
customers under the customer reward scheme during the e
reporting period.
Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year FEMKBEES YA E2565000% T
amounted to HK$2,565,000 (2023: HK$3,713,000) have been (2023 4F : 3,713,000 7T ) E N &L= 2024
recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2024. F£3H31BIFEERNERZ AWK -
23. REFUND LIABILITIES 23. EIHEE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Refund liabilities arising from right of RERMESZRFAE
return

444 463
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24, HEEB
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TRITRAEBEHEGBEOFIRE L2
of the Group’s lease liabilities: B :
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Total minimum lease payments: xR EFRIBEEE
— Due within one year - R—FAEH 8,030 8,004
— Due in the second to fifth years - RE_FEERFHEH 3,496 4,530
11,526 12,534
Future finance charges on leases HEABHRENEEHA
liabilities (324) (346)
Present value of leases liabilities HEABMIRE 11,202 12,188
Present value of minimum lease SEEERBRIRE -
payments:
— Due within one year - R—FE RN H 7,769 7,732
- Due in the second to fifth years - RE_FEFERFEH 3,433 4,456
11,202 12,188
Less: portion due within one year o SMERBAER —F AR
included under current 2B
liabilities (7,769) (7,732)
Portion due after one year included PIVEIERB B ER —FREIH 2
under non-current liabilities BB 3,433 4,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

24,

LEASE LIABILITIES — continued

For the year ended 31 March 2024, leases are negotiated
for terms of one to three years (2023: one to three years).
Certain operating leases require the Group to pay either
minimum guaranteed amounts or turnover rent that is based
on prescribed rates of corresponding sales, whichever is the

higher.

As at 31 March 2024, lease liabilities amounted to
HK$11,202,000 (2023: HK$12,188,000) are effectively
secured by the related underlying assets as the rights to the
leased assets would be reverted to the lessors in the event
of default by repayment by the Group. During the year ended
31 March 2024, the total cash outflows for the leases were
HK$8,799,000 (2023: HK$9,084,000).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

24.

HEsE — &

BH1E2024F3A31B IEFE - B —
Z=F(2023%F : —E=F )MWHREE °
ETREHEERAEEZINHFERES
o IRBEHEEE L R EE A
B(URSERE) °

7202443 A31H » 11,202,000/t (2023
F : 12,188,000 7T) WHE A EHBRIE
A EMEER - LTI BRHE RSB R0
HEX  HEAENEMNESERTHM
A ° HE2024F3A31H - HENERE R
i 78,799,000/ 7 (20234F : 9,084,000/%
JT) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES — continued

Details of the lease activities

24.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group has entered into

leases for retails shops and an office.

Type of
right-of-use asset

EREEENER

Retails shops

A
ijid
o

Office

>
i

Financial statements
item of right-of-use
asset included in
A B R
EAEEENER

Property, plant and

equipment

Property, plant and

equipment

WE -~ BB &R

Number
of lease

HENEE

7 (2023: 7)

7 (20234 :
7)

1(2023: 1)

1 (2023 % :
1)

There is no extension option or termination option on the

leases.

HEsE — &
HEFBNFE

R 2024F 20233 A31H * A&EE

HEEE R — @

Range of
remaining
lease term
BRTIHEHRZ
E

0.3 to 2 years
(2023: 0.5 to
2 years)

03%2%F
(2023 :
0.5F24)

2 years (2023:
1 year)

24
(20234 :
14F)

NEFTLEE °

Particular

B

Some of the
contracts contain
additional variable
lease payments
depends on
the turnover
rent during the
contract period

BOAKNEHEUAEH
HAHEE S RK
BRI ZHE
N

Only subject to
monthly fixed
rental payment

EFEXNEA
Ehakika

HHE I EIEHA AR P AR IBRE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

25. AMOUNT DUE TO CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Mr. Fu B4

25. EMNERRKRRRE

HK$°000
FET

2023
2023 F

HK$'000
FEIT

5,000

During the year ended 31 March 2023, part of consideration
of HK$3,900,000 for acquisition of an associate was paid
by the Group to Mr. Fu. The acquisition of the associate
was completed on 6 September 2022 (the “Completion
date”). The balance represents the consideration payable
and is denominated in HK$. The amount due to controlling
shareholder is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on the
Completion date. The amount was fully settled during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

26. BANK BORROWINGS

Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIFRITE R

# £202343A31H8 -
A W HE —

AEEEMEEE
fERNRINEMHRE BB

3,900,0007%8 7T ° U B % Bt & 2 5 B R 2022 FF
9 A6 BT ([5ER A ]) o ;Z BRI R FIE

R THRERELABITTEHE ©
& %\IE EEHE

#ﬁ‘%g //\ETD&EIfE}\%
2024 F3 A31 HIEFEEEER

26. HITEXR

HK$’000
FET

22,799

RIE A

2023
20234

HK$'000
FHETT

28,856
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

26. BANK BORROWINGS — continued

The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

26. RITER —

=

=}

AREBRTIERWETEEBFRET ¢

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank borrowings are repayable (note) $R1T{& X MELE T Il BAFR A8
(Hi7z)
— Within 1 year -1FR 6,287 6,088
— After 1 year but within 2 years - 1F%B2FR 6,385 6,304
— After 2 years but within 5 years - 2FEB5FR 8,093 13,729
— After 5 years - 5F 1% 2,034 2,735
Total bank borrowings RITERERE 22,799 28,856
Comprising: BiE
— Amounts due within one year - ARBEERESE
shown under current liabilities RERERIER
and containing a repayment on 7 —F N E| B A
demand clause IA 6,287 6,088
— Amounts that are not repayable - BAERESHERRE
within one year from the end —ENEEES
of the reporting period but BRESREEIERRIE
containing a repayment on BIAREBERE)
demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) 16,512 22,768
Total bank borrowings RITE A% 22,799 28,856

Note: These amounts are based on the scheduled repayment dates

set out in the bank borrowing agreements.

The Group’s banking facility letters contain a clause which

give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand

immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether

the Group has complied with the covenants and met the

scheduled repayment obligations.

Bt -

AEENRITRERMTSAE B
=N

Z

i

EFRASRITIE R BRI EEKX B S

;oE

ABREERISHER 2R AVER

T AEEREE TR MEITHEER
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

26.

BANK BORROWINGS — continued

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the unsecured bank
borrowings were guaranteed by HKMC Insurance Limited
under the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme and personal
guaranteed by Mr. Fu, the ultimate controlling party of the

Company.

All bank borrowings bear variable-rate ranging from Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate minus 2.5% per annum to Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate minus 2% per annum as at 31 March 2024
and 2023.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal
to contracted interest rates) per annum on the Group’s bank
borrowings as at 31 March 2024 and 2023, is as following:

o ¢

\
L

Effective interest rates:
— Variable-rate borrowings

Lo
4 5B

G S

26.

TER —

72024 FF & 20234F 3 A 31 H « EILAR
TEFEEBRIREERA WE%FEP/J\
TREERTEIREERIRBAERRARL
PEAR 77 (8 S A SR LM A FEAR ©

72024 % K 202393 A318  LUZENF
K BMEHRITER  AXEHASF
BILREENRF2.5% B LRERF
TR 2%

R 2024 F 2 2023F 3 A31H + A&EE R
TEFNSFERFERER (IERETLF)
)T

2023

2023 F

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

3.6% to 4.1% 3.1% to 3.6%

All bank borrowings are denominated in HK$.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 K& Z= 202443 A 31 HILFE

27.

LSP OBLIGATIONS

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the
laws of Hong Kong), Hong Kong employees that have been
employed continuously for at least five years are entitled to
LSP under certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers

or upon retirement).

The amount of LSP payable is determined with reference to
the employee’s last monthly salary (capped at HK$22,500)
and the years of service, reduced by the amount of any
accrued benefits derived from the Group’s contributions to
MPF scheme (see note 9), with an overall cap of HK$390,000
per employee. Currently, the Group does not have any
separate funding arrangement in place to meet its LSP

obligations.

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment
Ordinance, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to
offset the LSP. The Amendment Ordinance will take effect on
the Transition Date. Separately, the Government has indicated
that it would launch a subsidy scheme to assist employers

after the abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism takes effect, an employer can no longer use
any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions made
before, on or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in
respect of an employee’s service from the Transition Date.
However, where an employee’s employment commenced
before the Transition Date, the employer can continue to use
the above accrued benefits to reduce the LSP in respect
of the employee’s service up to that date. In addition, the
LSP in respect of the service before the Transition Date
will be calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before the Transition Date and the years of

service up to that date.

The benefit payment under LSP remains capped at
HK$390,000 per employee.

payment exceeds HK$390,000, the amount in excess of the

If an employee’s total benefit

cap is deducted from the portion accrued from the Transition
Date.

27.

REBRBEEE

*ETFME(%I%WU>>(%\7‘%5£1§\J“57ﬁ) X
LER T (R EEFESIRIN)  EEX
BELRAFHNEEREAEENRBRS

ENERHRBEEEH2ERENKIEA
¥ (LR m22,500/8 7T ) & RIS Hi i &
E o WHRAE B [R5 1E S5 3R E
ENEMREREGZSR(EMZEI &4
EEmMEE LR /&390,000/87T ° B Al
AEEY EBEMEBNESLHARTH
EHIRG S EE

202266 A - BT R E R TIE8ET K
Bl - BUBLARE e Fla e a2 E 2
R EHRBARE ® o EFIEMERBER
HIAEW - BHh - BINE RS EEUEHE S
B EBE IR ENEE ©

Hep —BEOHEHEEHI LR BEET
BE B LA SR B 1E 08 18 & AR PTEE AE MO (] R
Hikmn(TwetBER Rz - EA%Z

BATTERI R - SRANIRIR 8 fER A HIE
MRS FHNRREE - AT HES
RBEBMAE MEXE AR rASE
VA b ot R E g 25 H00R B B 280K B HIAT A
REFHNRBARB S - oo FRBRE
HEIRTH RSN RBRB S IRBEREEHE
ERBEBMANAHRBEEZ A BNR
B HEE

BEEERRARBeNEZSE LRMD
#%390,00078 7T ° fini & B &Y # & 48 B R
390,000 % 7T - #BIH ERMSE RSB BE
HEffem) 2E 25 H kR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R EwRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

27. LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued 27.

The Group has accounted for the offsetting mechanism
and its abolition as disclosed in notes 2.3 and 3.17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group has determined that the Amendment Ordinance
primarily impacts the Group’s LSP obligations with respect to
Hong Kong employees.

The present value of unfunded LSP obligations and its
movements are as follows:

REBRBEEE — #&

AR T R R 8 M 1 e E OB I R0 1505
AR IREEMBRERME23R%3.17
THE -

AEBECEEEFGRIEIEXEREEY
EEEENRMMRBESEE -

EHAERHREEEENREREESH N
T

HK$'000
FET
As at 1 April 2022 M 202243 A31H 296
Remeasurements recognised in other REMEE R R ERNENTE
comprehensive income:
— Actuarial gains arising from changes in — UBRRXEPELENBE RS
financial assumptions (114)
Expenses recognised in profit or loss: BaEPERHFASL
— Current service cost — BVEARRFS AL AR 196
— Past service cost — BARBA 138
As at 31 March 2023 (Restated) and 7202343 31 B(KEF) R
1 April 2023 2023F 4 H1H 516
Remeasurements recognised in other REMEEYSERNERE :
comprehensive income:
— Actuarial gains arising from changes in — HBBRREHELENBRE K=
financial assumptions (69)
Expenses recognised in profit or loss: BT BRI
— Current service cost — BIHARRFS A AR 259
As at 31 March 2024 202443 A 318 706
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR A

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

27. LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued

27. RERBEEE —~&

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(gE5)

Analysed into: DA
— Current portion — BIEAER (R 11 4
— Non-current portion — JEENHAER (D 695 512
706 516

The current service cost and past service cost are included
in employee benefits expenses. They are recognised in the

BIER AR TS RO AN BB T RIS X A5 5T AR B
BHFS - WRERE KSR A TSR

following line items in the consolidated statement of profit or B A iER -
loss and other comprehensive income:

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&=E51)
Selling and distribution costs HE & KA 199 379
General and administrative expenses ~ — M RITHFI X 60 (45)
259 334
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

27.

LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued

Estimates and assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
LSP obligations are as follows:

RERBEEE — &
st RBR

ErRIARBESEENERNBERIRD
T

2024 2023
2024 % 20234

HK$°’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

(Restated)

(&=E751)

Discount rate BhIR & 3.70% 3.13%

Salary growth rate NS R X 2% to 3% 2% to 3%

Turnover rate (by age group) MR (R FiRER S5 ) 14% to 45% 14% to 44%
Expected investment return on AR IR e AT HE 2 Y

offsetable MPF accrued benefits TEHAR & B3R 2.5% 2.5%

These assumptions were developed by management. Discount
factors are determined close to each period-end by reference
to market yields of high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related LSP obligations. Other assumptions are based on
current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical
experience.

The present value of the LSP obligations was measured using
the projected unit credit method.

The weighted average duration of the LSP obligations is 17
years (2023: 18 years).

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted LSP obligations in
the next 41 years as at 31 March 2024 is disclosed as follows:

ZEBRAEEESE - MRXTVERD
BERAFL2EA N RENEEE
FHAHAMR AR B R MRS & B E MR AL
MEEAREFHNTSRERMEE - &
RRTIERNARBELER EEEN B
R -

RHRG S S TNEERBETEMER
JRETE o
FHRGEETHNMNEFHER A17F
(20234 : 184F)

R2024F3HA31H » & K415F K BFIR
NEHRESETHBHE BT E D
—F:

Over 1 year Over 2 years
but within but within
5 years Over 5 years

Within 1 year 2 years
BE1F #E25F

15R BR2ER BR5FR BB5F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
LSP obligations RERESER 23 - 52 1,297 1,372

The LSP obligations expose the Group to actuarial risks such
as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment risk of the
Group’s MPF scheme’s constituent funds.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

27.

LSP OBLIGATIONS — continued
Changes in the significant actuarial assumptions

The calculation of the LSP obligations is sensitive to the
significant actuarial assumptions mentioned above. The
following table summarises the effects of changes in these
actuarial assumptions on the LSP obligations at the end of
each reporting periods.

27.

REBRBEEE —#&
BEABEBRRNZD

RHRGEEETNAEH LA RBEER
RFEFHRE - TRBEAZEBREBRRNE
PUHEREHRRRHRGESEENZE -

Impact on LSP obligations

HROBRBEESENHTE
Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption the assumption the assumption
BB BE R 3% 1 1 R RL IR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
As at 31 March 2024 1202453 A31H
Discount rate LRSS 0.25% (28) 29
Salary growth rate g K= 0.25% 3 (4)
Turnover rate (by age group) MAE(RFRAERIZS) 25% (49) 49
Expected investment return AR SRR @ FERT = Y
on offsetable MPF accrued RHRERR
benefits 5% (1) 1
As at 31 March 2023 M2023F3 A31H
Discount rate CUERS 0.25% (22) 24
Salary growth rate FrEfE R = 0.25% 2 2)
Turnover rate (by age group) MAER(RFRERNED) 25% (58) 58
Expected investment return Al fHoRTE S FE AT RE R AN
on offsetable MPF accrued TEHAIR & B3R
benefits 5% (1) 1

The sensitivity analyses presented above may not be
representative of actual change in the LSP obligations as it
is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the LSP
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same
actuarial valuation method has been applied when calculating
the LSP obligations recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

EilgEEI M AR I RRRARBE R

ENERZL AR LBRRAIEHEEH
B THREEBBELRL  FHERARE

SEEHEARERROERER - KA
Bt R M BN R T B ERR RS
R ERARNBEGETDES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. KA
Details of movements of share capital of the Company are as ARABIEASEFBOAT :
follow:
Number
of share Share capital
BRHEEAE [N
HK$ HK$°000
BT FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.01ETLER
Authorised: EE
As at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, /20224481 H * 20234
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 3A31H 2023F4H1H
N 20243 B31H 1,500,000,000 15,000,000 15,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBE
As at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, A 202244 F 18 * 20234
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 3H31H 2023 4H81H
N 20243 F31H 750,000,000 7,500,000 7,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
6 March 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with, and to provide incentive to
eligible participant(s) including employees (full-time and part-
time), executives or officers, directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers, agent, and other persons approved
by the board of directors, to optimise their performance and

efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer
to grant an option to eligible participant(s) to subscribe for
the shares of the Company at an exercise price and subject
to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme. Taking into
account of the effect of the Share Consolidation, the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue at the time dealings in the shares of the
Company first commence on the Stock Exchange (as adjusted

as a result of the Share Consolidation).

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of

ten years from its adoption date.

No options were granted, exercised or lapsed during the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 and no share options
were outstanding as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

29.

BRETE

RARMERET EI(TERESE )T
BIER2019F3 A6 HBBR IS RE
BRAN o BERRAEST BB ER S| MR B s bA B
7 AR A B RS HE NS E XS
% WEEEERSHEE(RIEEBR IR
B8 =SfAEEEISR/AE EE &
A EER - HER BF - REREF
SHUENEMA L) AARE BB F MR A
THERBRBE -

EXgragERNBRAER2RERHE
Pt - DAME BB O ST I B0 IRREOARR T
BITRERBARA RN - REBRE
Z| R AR B EM R B HREHA R
i kM Ry B & E NSEARAR
B EREBRZAEERCETRNDAR
) 10% (R & M) °

REARMERT 8l 8 4 B i st +F HAR
MARBR

B £2024F K2023F3A318 It FE
MEERERERERESSIBERDE - 17
i FESE SRR B A 2024 4 K 2023 4
3 A 31 B 3 5 A B AR A (8 AR AT AE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE 20243 A 31 H L FfE

30.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company’s share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
19 March 2021. The purpose of the Share Award Scheme as
follows: (a) recognise and reward the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by (i) any individual or
businesses that purchases the goods and services from the
retail stores or online sales services or its subsidiaries or its
consignment sales agent operated by the Company whom
the board or its delegate(s) consider, in their sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group; (i) any
individual, being a full-time employee, director (including
executive, non-exclusive and independent non-executive
directors) whom the board or its delegate(s) considers, in
their sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute
to the Group; and (iii) any individual or business whom the
board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Persons”); (b) align the interests of the Eligible Persons with
those of the Company, and strive for the future development
and expansion of the Group; and (c) attract high-calibre
personnel to join the Group and provide them with incentives
to participate in the continual operation and development of

the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer to
grant awarded shares to eligible persons subject to terms of
the Share Award Scheme. Upon the Share Consolidation, the
maximum number of Shares which may be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme was adjusted from 75 million Shares to
7.5 million Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the adoption
date and as at the date of this annual report (after adjustment
upon Share Consolidation), respectively. The board shall
not instruct the trustee to subscribe for and/or purchase any
shares for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme when such
subscription and/or purchase will result in such threshold

being exceeded.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

30.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME — continued

The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to
a selected participant shall not exceed 1 per cent (1%) of
the total number of issued shares of the Company as at the
adoption date (i.e. 750,000 Shares after adjustment upon the

Share Consolidation).

The board of directors may, at its sole and absolute discretion,
accelerate the vesting of awarded shares and/or waive and/or
alter any or all of the vesting conditions attached to the Share

Awarded Scheme.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of: (i)
the eighth anniversary date of the adoption date; and (ii) such
date of early termination as determined by the board provided
that such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of

any selected participant.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there is no purchase
of awarded shares by the trustee (2023: 1,160,000 awarded
shares were purchased by the trustee at a total cost
(including related transaction costs) of approximately
HK$60,000). As at 31 March 2024, the trustee held 10,630,000
(2023: 10,630,000) shares of the Company purchased but not

yet awarded under the Share Award Scheme.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, no awarded shares had been
granted, vested and lapsed pursuant to the Share Award

Scheme.

30.

R EBE — &

ARTRETLEEZESRHEE - T
BBBRRMN B HARQ R BITRR M A
2 1% (BN & B% 17 & B 38 2 1& /750,000
%) o

Exgr2ERNBMRERRD R B &
S HE R R R E AR R AT B A Y
LRI B B R AT ©

AEIRSRATREBHKLL : ()VERAMEH
WEEEER R (i) EFSETEHIRA
RIERH - ERARREINSZEEMLER
ESEENEMABRARET -

RBBITETARAAZZANDEER
13 B) & 1 N 55 B AR IR AR 1D 2R Eh 5T 14 H A9
S MR B 2 AT L A5 FEER A
HE2024F3A31BIEFE  ZEAL
EEE SR IR (20234 : LREABET
1,160,000 R S2EN IR 17 - 4RRK AN (B 1548
R 572N ) #60,0007% 7T ) ° 1R 2024 & 3
H31H - &5 A# A A 710,630,000 i
(2023 4 : 10,630,000 f% ) 1B % & 7£ I& 19
SEEh T &I 1E I 42 R -

2024 4 X 202343 A 31 H
B - BEMKRK o

R BEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

31. LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. HERE
As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the lease commitments of R2024F 22023 F3 A31H © HARRIEA
lease not yet commenced are as follows: FEMBEAENT :
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F R 131 -
In the second to fifth years EE_FRERF 537 =
668 -
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had committed to a lease MR2024F3 A31H ' A"EBEAFHEN
for a factory in the PRC in which the lease had not yet REBEA IR BEHESAMLSG - 24
commenced. The total future cash outflow for this lease E /KRR €% L 42 %8 5668,000 7% T
amounting to HK$668,000 (2023: Nil) in aggregate which are (20234 : &) - BEFIA LK -
included in the table above.
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BAREIE
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Contracted but not provided for — ERTAVBREE —
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB REE - 153
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 33. METHELANEEBHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAFMAEBRETHAESNEEE
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from o B EEELANEGBEREERERE
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, ERIBERAERGERESRERAD
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s HARETHRESRENALE -
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.
Amount
due to
controlling Bank Lease
shareholder borrowings liabilities Total
EFERRRAE RITER HEAR o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETL FET
As at 1 April 2022 R2022%F4 R 1H - 28,295 16,998 45,293
Cash-flows: R
Interest expense paid BRFEHY = (775) (444) (1,219)
Proceeds of bank borrowings RITEHMEHE = 6,000 = 6,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BEFTER = (5,439) = (5,439)
Capital element of lease rentals paid EREERENASED = = (8,198) (8,198)
Non-cash: ¥HE:
Lease modification EREEH - - 3,564 3,564
Advance from the controlling ERBRRER (L)
shareholder (note) 5,000 - - 5,000
Covid-19 related rent concessions BEX2019 A E R SRIEH
received (note 9) MeRe(H#9) = = (176) (176)
Interest expenses recognised (note 8)  BHANN SFHZ(H:18) - 775 444 1,219
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 7202353 A31B K%
2023F4A1H 5,000 28,856 12,188 46,044
Cash-flows: R
Interest expense paid BEAFERY - (959) (290) (1,249)
Repayments of bank borrowings BERTER - (6,057) - (6,057)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERAEREHALHH - - (7,990) (7,990)
Non-cash: ¥HE:
Lease modification EREEH - - 7,004 7,004
Repayment to the controlling (B PR R
shareholder (5,000) - - (5,000)
Interest expenses recognised (note 8)  ERERMF SF% (A:£8) - 959 290 1,249
As at 31 March 2024 320043 7318 - 22,799 11,202 34,001

Note: The amount due represents the consideration payable to the
controlling shareholder for acquisition of Dia Myth (note 25).

et BN RARBRBEENENERERKE

(HtEE25) °
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs
to the scheme, which contribution is matched by employees
but subject to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per month for
each employee to the scheme.

The employees employed by the PRC subsidiary are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiary is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under the

schemes.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

retirement benefit schemes in future years.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme contributions for both

years are set out in note 9.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

RIKEFNFTE

AEBERMETERERERRILMEHIME
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DHRREE  YAREATEENESRE -
AEBERAZFEFLENERARERT S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with its
related companies during both years:

Acquisition of an associate W iE — K& N Al

Interest paid on lease liabilities to

the controlling shareholder of the F 8
Company

Principal paid on lease liabilities to
related companies controlled by
the controlling shareholder of the &

Company

Interest paid on lease liabilities to AL AT X NHEESEE

associates Z B

Principal paid on lease liabilities to

associates

S

AN A R) 4% A% AR 3R 42 ) Y
related companies controlled by SUNCIERE: N =g=L =4

AR 72 B 42 A A BRAZE 61 1 8
BARIXMNMHEERES

AEERRXNNEEAE

35. MBALRS

(a) BREAMBHRRPHEMIED ST
BENR S REHRIN  AEERM
EFERERREHTAE TS

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
- 8,900

- 26

- 499

44 97
2,920 2,342

Included in trade and other receivables as at 31 March
2024 were rental deposits paid to the associates of the
Company of HK$494,000 (2023: HK$494,000).

Included in lease liabilities as at 31 March 2024 were
due to the associates of the Company of HK$5,709,000
(2023: HK$2,920,000).

R2024F3A31EME S K E b
FRFBEEEZMNTFHEQRZ
fl & ¥% © 494,000/ Jr(2023 F :
494,000/ 7T) °

N2024%F3A31BHEGERE
JE < B 4% /A &) 5,709,000 7 7T (2023
£ : 2,920,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

35.

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — continued 35. BEHBARSE — &
(b) The remuneration of key management personnel during (b) ETEZEEEABRZMEFE N
both years was as follows: Bz -
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHEERET 4,713 4,647
Retirement benefit scheme IRIRAE A ET B ALK
contributions 170 166
4,883 4,813
Key management personnel include directors of the FTEBFEBAEBBREARTINES
Company and other senior management of the Group. AEBENEMRRERE £2
The remuneration of key management personnel is BEEEBEAETFMNBEARAEERESR
determined by management of the Company having EZRARBETSBRETE -
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EXERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes lease liabilities, amount due to controlling
shareholder and bank borrowings as set out in notes 24, 25
and 26, respectively and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed

in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues and
raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. €T H
Categories of financial instruments SRMIADE
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKRATTENEREE
— Bank balances and cash - RITEHREIRE 11,159 20,657
— Trade and other receivables* - B 5 RHE MR FRIA* 4,965 5,203
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRNEREE
— Listed equity investments - ETRERE 1,844 3,066
17,968 28,926
Financial liabilities e h=Rim
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IZ# KA EH L RIAE
— Trade and other payables** - B 5 R E A FIE 2,490 2,414
- Bank borrowings — RITEK 22,799 28,856
— Amount due to controlling — FEHZRR B R AR
shareholder - 5,000
— Lease liabilities - fHEaE 11,202 12,188
36,491 48,458
* Prepayments, right of return assets and non-refundable deposits * TEEEMNZE REEEENTARER
are excluded &
o Accruals are excluded *x TEEESER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 20244 3 31 HIEF/E

37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, lease liabilities, bank
borrowings and amount due to controlling shareholder. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (foreign currency risk, other price risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The directors of the Company manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.
Market risks
Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as majority of the
revenue were denominated in functional currency of the

respective group entities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s

37.

EETH — &
BEEMREEEEREE

AEENEI2CR TEBERAFEAA
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R MBEHR  AEEBRINEAENE

foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities MEENBENREDENT :
at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Assets BE
US$ ET 92 80
RMB AR 71 5
JPY = - 30
Liabilities =it
Us$ eI 1,989 2,098
RMB AR 3 -

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risks — continued
Foreign currency risk — continued

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
US$, RMB and JPY. Under the pegged exchange rate system,
the financial impact on exchange difference between HK$ and
US$ will be immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are held by group entities having HK$ as
their functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared. No sensitivity analysis has been prepared
for HK$ against RMB and JPY as the amounts involved are

insignificant.
Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates). The Group is exposed to change
in market prices in respect of its listed equity investments

classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the Group’s exposure to equity price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If the price of the listed equity investments had been 5%
higher/lower, the profit for the year ended 31 March 2024
would be increased/decreased by HK$92,000 (2023: loss for
the year would be decreased/increased by HK$153,000) for
the Group, as a result of the changes in fair value of financial

assets classified as FVTPL.

EWMTHR — &
MERBREEEERBE — &

TS mbE — &
SMNEmEE — &

AEEFEAEBET  ARBRBEITHIN
EER - RIZEEXRBBGE  BREEE
BREANABSETHEELEERAR
M%EEEW%E A ITEETT Z
BEEZBOMBYEFTEKN - FLL &
REGRESN - BAMPEELTE
AN BMITERBTEARE R B ITREH
REE DT o

R b 18188 %

H At AR RS & B 15 B (M R R HMNE

‘ZHEJJ%WI\)“%U CEHERTEZRF
Hﬂ%&*&é"*ﬁﬁfﬁ HEMBEEL LT
P i1 B I E IR s R DA R PRI RR B 75
BE MEMSERESH AR -

THGREDHIRBEARER RS R
EERARAERRRTEE

MEMBERESEERS LA T®
5% @ NEBMEE2024F3 31 HILEE
/Y35 A #1508 4> 92,0007 7T (2023
£ EEERED, 1 H01153,000587T) T
HRADEREAFEF ABENSREE
B AFEZEHHTE -
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risks — continued
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk and cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to lease liabilities bearing
fixed rates (note 24), bank balances (note 20) and bank
borrowings bearing variable rates (note 26), respectively. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation on Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate arising from
the Group’s HK$ denominated bank borrowings. The Group
currently does not have a policy on cash flow hedges of
interest rate risk. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate

risk should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points and 10 basis points increase or
decrease in bank borrowings and bank balances, respectively
are used which represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings and bank
balances had been 100 basis points and 10 basis points
respectively higher/lower and all of other variables were held
constant, the profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 would
be decreased/increased by HK$179,000 (2023: loss for the
year would be increased/decreased by HK$220,000).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at
the end of each reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, management
of the Company has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Given the Group’s wholesale
customers are widely spread over, management considers
that the credit risk associated is low. In addition, the Group
collectively assesses the impairment for its customers using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings based on
shared common credit risk characteristics of customers. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

37.

TMITHE —#

BHREREEEEREE — &

= BB R R AT

RS ERE ARG F I RERTRERN
Bff AIAKERSHCHEREREEN
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 37.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal

credit rating Description

AESE -G L

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

i9E IR FRAGERBORE - B EE (AR

FRIE

Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settles after due date

BEBALERINERRER - ERER

GET) AR RE

High risk There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

= R AIED il E & F S MR EIREE R (= B R B 156 TR
WU

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

&8 ERBBETREEREERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

i sH BiE ﬁ%mﬁﬁAﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁI% AN £5 &

R B & AT B 5RIA

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

THMIHE — &
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EEmLER B ETE —
AEENABEERR

85l

Trade receivables
B 5 RrEWMIE

Lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired)
FEHBRHEEER
— EEERE

Lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired)

FEEREEER
— EEERE

Lifetime ECL (not

credit-impaired)

FEPEREERE
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
FEPREBEEER
— EERE

Amount is written
off

HRSHTRIA

.
i

2 A AR B R TS

Other financial
assets
HitemEE

12-month ECL

+—1@A
TBHEEEE

12-month ECL

@A
HHERER

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-impaired)

FEPEREEER
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
FEMEREEER
— EERE

Amount is written off

HSHFRIA
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The table below details the credit risk exposures of

the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

Financial asset at
amortised cost

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Bank balances

BRBRAEN
SREE

BARME

b REKTR

RiT&H

External
credit
Notes rating

A
g ERRR

19 N/A
TR

19 N/A
TR

20 A-to AA+
A-Z AA+

37.

EEITH — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

EERBRRBEFEG — &

TREFIARESBAEOE SRR (Hi

THREMEEERNE)

Internal
credit
rating

k]
EEIR

Low risk

v

Medium risk

RERR

Low risk

Vel

N/A
TER

12-month
ECL or
lifetime ECL
T=EA
SFEPES
REBR

Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)
FEREE

EERE
(BIL%)

Lifetime ECL
(simplified
approach)
FEHEY

REBE
(BiL%)

12-month ECL
128 ATEH
FEEE

12-month ECL
+=f8A
HHEEBR

Gross carrying amount

BREAE

2024 2023

2024 20235

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FET

1,547 1,486

330 444

3,118 3,305

9,249 18,462
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

The credit risk on other receivables is minimal as the risk of
default is low after considering the factors as set out in note
3.7. No ECL allowance has been recognised as the total ECL

of other receivables is considered as immaterial.

The Group assesses the expected losses on financial assets
and considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of the respective asset and whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the assets at the end of the reporting period with the risk
of default at the date of initial recognition and considers

available forward-looking information, including below

indicators:
o internal credit rating based on historical information;
° actual or expected significant changes in the operating

results of the debtors;

. significant changes in the expected performance and
behavior of the debtors, including changes in the

payment status of debtors; and

o the possible impacts associated with the overall change
in the economic environment that has an adverse effect

on the debtors.

The Group applies the simplified approach and assesses the
lifetime ECL for trade receivables at the end of each reporting

period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit risk
and ECL for trade receivables as at 31 March 2024 and 2023
are set out in note 19.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

37.

THMIHE — &
BHREREEEEREE — &

EE R RAETE — &

A B E 5 R E B SRY  EALS
EEREFRS  AMARS HRSEY
F5

Hp W RENEERRER - thTyER
T RMIRES.7 PR 8 A =12 2 MR EIE -
REBREEMEYGANBREEERE
BITEX  SRERBEEHES XEE

= o

AEEF S REENTRABIELZ B
*HEEW:.IEQEH BRI REE
BABREARIL -

REEERRED AEEMN - RAEBELL
F#&iﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁéiLf@E’ﬂﬂ i B 7)) 2 HE
REHMRORR  EEESHATE T
B BREATNER

e  HENBEEHMARNEER
s BERAREXENERIBHEAXN

2

s BEBARBMEKBERTANEAE
g BREEBANREROZES
&

c RERFABBCURHAKAE
KRR E

ARERABLE  REREHRFEE

HRBFBENFEREREEER - BR
FHER SR E R B R -

BN E 5 MW FIE R 2024 £ K% 2023 £ 3
A31 BREERK KIEHEEEE/NER
AR EHAHFE9 ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 IR&EZE 20243 A 31 HILFE

37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. Based on
the credit rating, the directors of the Company considered the

ECL for bank balances is insignificant.
Liquidity risk

Management of the Company has built a liquidity risk
management framework for managing the Group’s short and
medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking
facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual
cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.
As at 31 March 2024, the Group has no available unutilised
bank borrowing facilities (2023: Nil).

37.

TMITHE —#

BHREREEEEREE — &
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 37.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing
to exercise their rights. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

EETH — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

mBELmE — &

TERAIAKRERESRABBENHBRE L
HIR - TRIBBAKE R K ERERHK
FRMEE  URRPBEEEORHRE
TRE - ABME - TwRITITHEEERN
MR - S AREREZEGRIORITER
BRE D REF BHNEREEE - TREA
RERNERNERERE

Weighted On demand Over 1 year Total
average or less than but within  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flow amount
i AREXR HBA1F AERRE
FHME  F-FAERE BR5FR RERE REE
% HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2024 R2024%3A31H
Trade and other payables &5 & H &N FIE - 2,490 - 2,490 2,490
Bank borrowings (note)  $R{TER(HE) 3.76 22,799 - 22,799 22,799
Lease liabilities HEARE 3.47 8,030 3,496 11,526 11,202
33,319 3,496 36,815 36,491
As at 31 March 2023 M2023F 3 A31H
Trade and other payables &5 & E {708 - 2,414 - 2,414 2,414
Bank borrowings (note)  R{TER(H:Z) 3.42 28,856 = 28,856 28,856
Amount due to controlling  JERHERRAR R B
shareholder - 5,000 - 5,000 5,000
Lease liabilities HEARE 3.1 8,004 4,530 12,534 12,188
44,274 4,530 48,804 48,458

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Note: Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2024, the
aggregate carrying amount of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$22,799,000 (2023: HK$28,856,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the borrowing agreements with the principal and
interest cash outflows as follows:

Aggregate principal and interest cash outflows repayable:

37.

EEITH — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

RBETEE — &

HiaE - RUAEREIEABE S - AFTAERERKER
BREORTERIAAERERS—FR
B8 WERESERN - K 2024F3 A31H -
ZFIRITE R E 42 © 5 /522,799,000 %8
T (2023 4F : 28,856,000 7T ) ° A& &t & AN
SENABR - KR AEZRRFITTAKA
FIREGTIE LB ZSREANRF B A - AN 7A)
ERHEGE  RERTERGRBERB AR
HOEECERBHESE A RFSEER
Ha

FEEEAS RABIRE T 48 -

2024 2023
2024 F 20234

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Within 1 year 1FER 7,030 6,978
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&E2FA 6,913 6,981
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEBESFR 9,471 15,097
After 5 years 5% 1% 2,150 2,923
25,564 31,979
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Fair value measurements

Financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of
a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on
the observability of significant inputs to the measurements, as

follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly, and not using significant

unobservable inputs

Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial

asset is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level

of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 37.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Fair value measurements — continued

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position on a recurring basis are

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

EEITH — &
HERREEEEREEK — &

AFEE — &

BBEE B HEENGE B BRRARARA
FEAENCSREES AR FERE RN
T

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—® et U} E=Z® et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FET FET
As at 31 March 2024 720243 A831H
Financial assets at FVTPL: #ZAFETAEBTZH
TRUEE ¢
- Listed equity - LTRERE
investments 1,844 - - 1,844
As at 31 March 2023 M 202343 A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL: & AF(E AEZEN
TREE
— Listed equity - FTIRERE
investments 3,066 - - 3,066

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

The directors of the Company considered that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and liabilities are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2024 and 2023 because of the short maturity period on their

inception.

HZE2024F3A31HILFER WEE
AFKEHEE—F - £ -HZNE=H(2023
F ) o

ARBEERR eRMEERABZERE
EHEHER 2024 F K 2023F3A31HZA
FTEIEEAEZRE  REREBRIFET
N SEIAESEE I
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. TEMBELATINFE
At the end of each reporting period, the Company has indirect REREHR - ZRARRATEZNBER
equity interests in the following principal subsidiaries: AR R AR

Equity interest attributable

Place of Issued and paid up to the Group
incorporation/ Type of legal Place of capitallregistered ARERERRE
Name of subsidiary establishment entity operation capital 2024 2023 Principal activity
BRIREARE/
KELAER AfAL/HIsE ERRERA feny iftEs 20245 NR%F FEED
SERE(FY)ERAT PRC Limited liability PRC HK$8,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of jewellery
company
SERE (R BRAT i BRAR i 8,000,000 EERE
Chuk Fung Jewellery Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Manufactory Limited company
SEREEHHARAR B BRAR &k 10,0007 REER
W-Rich Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Procurement, marketing,
company promotion, distribution

and wholesale of jewellery
BEERAR (20 BRAT 30 17 RERE  mARER
B DHRE

Chong Fai Group Holdings ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Procurement, marketing,
Company Limited company promotion, distribution of
jewellery and trading of

recycled gold products

BEERERERAA B BRAR Bk 10,0007 HERE  MARER
5E HEREK
Chong Fai Jewellery & Gold Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$20,010,000 99.99% 99.99%  Procurement, marketing,
Company Limited company (note) (note) promotion, distribution

and retail of jewellery
EIERELTARAR Bk BRAR Bk 20,010,000/87 (W) (Wit) RERE THERER
5E HERZE

King Jewellery & J Company Hong Kong Limited liability Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Dormant
Limited company
STRERRERAA &% BRAR &% 1T B
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38.

39.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FEMBLARINFE — &
— continued
Note: As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the amount of the non- HKiat - 12024 F 202343 A31H » IEEER
controlling interests is less than HK$1,000. Z & FPRAIT 1,000 TTIE °
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the L4 T B A B R 4R e A AN E [E (F {a] B RS
end of the year or anytime during the year. BITEMEBRES o
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. XA TFEBBERRE
COMPANY
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (note) RET B A B8R E (H7at) - =
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H e MR K08 247 247
Amount due from a subsidiary FE UL — [E BT /8 & R 3k IE 37,289 37,289
Bank balances and cash WITHBR IS 202 204
37,738 37,740
Current liabilities FEBaE
Other payables H b B 50R 10 10
Amount due to a subsidiary A~ — R B B A B 3R 13,874 13,864
13,884 13,874
Net current assets/Net assets REBEERE EEFE 23,854 23,866
Capital and reserves EARRRE
Share capital R% 7R 7,500 7,500
Reserves fE 16,354 16,366
Total equity s 23,854 23,866

Note: The amount of investments in subsidiaries is less than HK$1,000.

IE °
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY — continued

39. XATRMBEMRRER — &

Movement of the Company’s reserves: RN ENEE
Shares held
for the Share
Share Award Accumulated
premium Scheme losses Total
R4 22
T ERE
AR E Z R RitER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(note 30)
(H#30)
As at 1 April 2022 Mo022E4 1A 35,242 (693) (18,111) 16,438
Purchase of shares for the IRARAR 17 BB =t 2188 AR
Share Award Scheme = (60) = (60)
Loss and total comprehensive B RERNEEFH X £58
expense for the year = = (12) (12)
As at 31 March 2023 and M2023F3 A31 B K
1 April 2023 20234818 35,242 (753) (18,123) 16,366
Loss and total comprehensive B8 R F AL H X 45
expense for the year - - (12) (12)
As at 31 March 2024 7202443310 35,242 (753) (18,135) 16,354

As at 31 March 2024, the Company had distributable reserve

of approximately of HK$16,354,000 (2023: HK$16,366,000),

calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law

3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman

Islands. Such amount includes share premium which may

be distributable provided that immediately following the date

on which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in

a position to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & Z= 202443 431 AILF[E

40.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 May 2024, the Company implemented the share
consolidation on the basis that every ten issued and unissued
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company be consolidated into one consolidated share of
par value of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company.
The resolution for the share consolidation was duly passed
by the shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the
extraordinary general meeting on 24 May 2024. Further details
were set out in the Company's circular dated 9 May 2024 and
the Company's announcement dated 18 April 2024.

40.
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20245 5H28H  AARIEHRRMNDE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHRE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 # % 202443 31 HIEF/E

RESULTS ES |
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 & 2023 2022 fF 2021 4 2020 £
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FETT
(Restated)
(#=51)
Revenue W= 142,274 136,822 107,344 101,702 119,869
Profit/(Loss) before BBt A=, (E51E)
income tax 1,852 (2,911) (9,065) (1,244) (6,854)
Income tax (expense)/credit F58i (Fx) #EE (260) 741 1,382 964 1,370
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEREF,(EE) 1,592 (2,170) (7,683) (280) (5,484)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 £ 2023 4F 2022 F 20214 2020 F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(#=51)
Total assets BEEHAE 118,128 128,316 129,168 136,234 137,335
Total liabilities BEHEE (47,204) (58,120) (56,218) (65,293) (55,730)
Total equity e AR 70,924 70,196 72,950 80,941 81,605

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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